EDGAR'pro

iy EDGAR Dnlire”

INTEVAC INC

FORM 10-K

(Annual Report)

Filed 03/31/05 for the Period Ending 12/31/04

Address

Telephone
CIK
Symbol
SIC Code
Industry
Sector
Fiscal Year

3560 BASSETT STREET

SANTA CLARA, CA, 95054

4089869888

0001001902

IVAC

3559 - Special Industry Machinery, Not Elsewhere Classified
Industrial Machinery & Equipment

Industrials

12/31

Powere d By EDGA;Rbn]ine

http://www.edgar-online.com

© Copyright 2020, EDGAR Online, a division of Donnelley Financial Solutions. All Rights Reserved.
Distribution and use of this document restricted under EDGAR Online, a division of Donnelley Financial Solutions, Terms of Use.


https://www.edgar-online.com

Table of Contents



Table of Contents

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

(Mark One)
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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or
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission file number 0-26946

INTEVAC, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chgrt

California 94-3125814
(State or other jurisdiction of (.LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization Identification No.)
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(408) 986-9888

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dlfie Act:
None

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registere
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Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) t¢ifie Act:
Common Stock (no par value)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrélfthas filed all reports required to be filed ®gction 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (ordioch shorter period that the registrant was requaodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pastigs. YesH NoO

Indicate by a check mark if disclosure ofiniglient filers pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatieK & not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge]éfinitive proxy or information statements incorated by reference in Part Il of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-KO

Indicate by check mark whether the registimain accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12i§-the Exchange Act). Yell No
O

The aggregate market value of voting stodd bg non-affiliates of the Registrant, as of J@6e 2004 was approximately $122,256,000
(based on the closing price for shares of the Regiss Common Stock as reported by the NASDAQ el Market System for the last
trading day prior to that date). Shares of CommimetiSheld by each executive officer, director, &otder of 5% or more of the outstanding
Common Stock have been excluded in that such pgrsay be deemed to be affiliates. This determinaticaffiliate status is not necessarily a
conclusive determination for other purposes.
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This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardKimg statements, which involve risks and uncetiesgn\Words such as “believes,”
“expects,” “plans,” “anticipates” and the like indtate forward-looking statements. These forwimaking statements include comments rel
to technology and market trends in the data storaged disk drive and magnetic disk market; comsesiated to technology and market
trends in military and commercial markets for Idghtt sensors, cameras and systems; projected seakiyoand cyclicality in the market for
our equipment products; projected sales of hardk disves and magnetic disks for hard disk drivas; leadership position in magnetic disk
manufacturing equipment; projected customer requeats for new capacity and for technology upgradesh as for perpendicular recordir
to their installed base of magnetic disk manufaogiequipment, as well as the ability of our produo meet these requirements; extended
sales cycles for our equipment and military produptojected technology roadmaps and deploymergdidis for our military customers;
expected features, performance, costs, and cornveegitlvantages of products we are developing, dioty200 Lean systems, LIVAR ®
cameras and systems, NightVista® cameras, camerasilitary head mounted applications and commdrgiarkets and low light level
sensors; establishing relationships with developnaeid distribution partners for our imaging prodactlevelopment of manufacturing systems
for entry into new markets not previously addredsgds, and the cost of complying with governmegtilations. Our actual results may dif
materially from the results discussed in the forsvlmoking statements for a variety of reasons,uduig those set forth undeCertain Factor:
Which May Affect Future Operating Results.”

PART I

ltem 1. Business
Overview

We are the world’s leading provider of diglutering equipment to manufacturers of magnetidienased in hard disk drives and a
developer and provider of leading technology fdreme low light imaging sensors, cameras and systévie operate two businesses:
Equipment and Imaging.

Our Equipment business designs, manufactoragkets and services complex capital equipmentiwtiéposits, or sputters, highly
engineered thin-films onto magnetic disks usedardidisk drives. We believe our systems repreggmtoximately 60% of the installed
capacity of disk sputtering systems worldwide. Gustomers include the world’s leading manufactuoémmagnetic disks for hard disk drives,
such as Hitachi Global Storage Technologies, Koriviaxtor and Seagate Technology. We believe thelrgmiwth of digital data, the
transition from videocassette recorders to digitd¢o recorders and the growth of new consumeriegimns, such as personal video recorc
video game consoles and MP3 players, along withteethnology advances in the industry, will provigewith a significant growth
opportunity.

Our Imaging business develops and manufastleetro-optical sensors, cameras, and systermpehait highly sensitive detection of
photons in the visible and near infrared portiohthe spectrum, allowing vision in extreme low ligiituations. We currently develop night-
vision technology and equipment for military anarenercial applications. To date, our revenues haemlderived primarily from research ¢
development contracts funded by the U.S. governmgaplications for our imaging technology includensors and cameras for use in extreme
low light situations and systems for positive idfication of targets at long range. More recenilg, began developing products for use in the
commercial sector, specifically the security, Bfdgence and physical science markets.

Intevac was formed in 1990 and completedrarbged buyout of a number of divisions of Variass@éciates in February 1991. The
technologies acquired from Varian formed the fouiutefor our Equipment and Imaging businesses. Weevincorporated in October 1990 in
California. Our principal executive offices aredbed at 3560 Bassett Street, Santa Clara, Calf@&b5054, and our phone number is (408) 986-
9888. Our Internet home page is located at wwwaxtecom; however the information in, or that can be acedgkrough, our home page is
part of this report. Our annual report on Form 103HKarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current report$-orm 8-K, and amendments to such
reports are available, free of
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charge, on or through our Internet home page as asoeasonably practicable after we electroniddélysuch material with, or furnish it to, t
Securities and Exchange Commission.

“Intevac”, “LIVAR®,” “D-STAR®,” and “NightVista®,” among others, are our registered trademarks.

Equipment Business

Our Equipment business designs, manufactoraskets and services complex capital equipment imsthe sputtering, or deposition, of
highly engineered thin-films of material onto matioeisks which are used in hard disk drives. Hdisk drives are the primary storage
medium for digital data and function by storingalah magnetic disks. These magnetic disks areedtéata sophisticated manufacturing
process involving many steps, including platingyealing, polishing, texturing, sputtering and lahtion.

Storage Market Growth Driver.

Data storage requirements have rapidly irsg@drom kilobytes for documents, to megabytestatio and still images, to gigabytes for
video. Hard disk drives are the primary devicesiuUse storing and retrieving large amounts of dibdata. We believe there are a number of
emerging trends and applications that exploit thedeced storage costs and that require storagesine solutions.

* New consumer electronics applications, such asaligideo and audio recorders, video game platfpenerging HDTV applications a
streaming video require significant digital datarage capability

« Personal computers have evolved from devices dpgrsimple applications such as word processingpteerful machines that are
capable of playing, recording and creating multimexbntent, such as images, audio and video. Téegsabilities have driven the dem:
for new personal computers and increasing requinésrfer data storage. TrendFocus estimates aneusdpal computer unit growth of
12.2% over the period from 2003 to 20

« Enterprise data storage requirements are increaasnggulations and other business factors reqoimganies to archive more
information, such as documents and email. Addifignaompanies are transitioning from paper-bagsedage to digital data-based
storage and digital backu

« Certain traditional analog storage applicationsteesitioning to digital hard disk-based stor&g@r. example, the video surveillance
industry, including home security, law enforcememivate security services, retail, transportatoil government agencies, is
transitioning from analog video tapes to digitalchdisk storage

As a result of these and other storage agipdies, TrendFocus expects the total number ofwifitll hard disk drives shipped to grow from
261 million units in 2003 to 429 million units iMA7, or an annual growth rate of 13.2% .

Hard Disk Drive Market Dynamic

Areal Density IncreasindAreal density, the density of information storedmagnetic disks, continues to increase. Higher aieasity
allows more information to be stored on each magmktk. Magnetic disk manufacturers compete byeasing areal density, which enables
them to provide more data storage capacity at al@ost per gigabyte.

Transition from Longitudinal to Perpendicular Redorg. Historically, magnetic disk manufacturers have balle to increase the areal
density of a disk by improving existing longitudimacording processes, a storage method where rtiagaelata bits are parallel to the disk.
However, in the past few years, the rate of in@éasreal density for longitudinal recording preses has slowed, as the magnetized data bits
are packed closer and closer together, which iseemstability. In order to increase the raterefibdensity expansion, we believe the
magnetic disk industry will transition to perpendar recording. In perpendicular recording the dats are oriented perpendicular to the plane
of the disk, which enables the bits to be recomtes higher density than in longitudinal recording.
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New Equipment Required for Perpendicular Recordiffte equipment that magnetic disk manufacturershased in the mid to late 1990s
could generally accommodate up to 12 process sidpsh was sufficient to enable improvements irelcensity using longitudinal recording.
However, economically producing disks capable appedicular recording may require as many as 2@are process steps. As a result, in
order to transition to perpendicular recordingkdignufacturers will most likely need to replaceeiool their existing disk manufacturing
equipment. We also believe that the additional secsteps available on these perpendicular capgdtiems add process flexibility which may
enable further increases in the areal density ngitodinal media.

Consolidation of Equipment Suppliefide supplier base of disk sputtering equipmentdoasolidated. Beginning in 1995, many magnetic
disk manufacturers undertook aggressive expandanspThe reduction in disks per drive combinedwliiese capacity expansions resulted in
substantial excess disk production capacity indtee1990s through 2002. As a result, even as stbahge capacity of all hard disk drives
shipped increased from 1997 to 2003, disk manufactuwdid not make significant investments in neskdiputtering equipment. As a result, of
the four leading providers of disk sputtering equgmt, only two have delivered new equipment platfocapable of perpendicular recording.

Industry ConsolidationTwo types of companies purchase magnetic disk exradt equipment; vertically integrated companies th
manufacture both disks and the hard drives thathesdisks, and merchant suppliers that manufachaignetic disks for sale to hard disk
manufacturers. These companies were also advexBebted by the overcapacity of 1997 through 2@02| as a result, the industry underwent
significant consolidation. For instance, in 2001xtat acquired Quantum’s hard disk drive operati@ms Fujitsu ceased manufacturing hard
disk drives for the personal storage market. IN220BM sold its hard disk drive business to Hitadhi2004, Showa Denko acquired Trace
Storage Technology. This consolidation has redtitechumber of magnetic disk manufacturers ablespond to any increasing demand for
disks for hard disk drives.

Return to Industry Growthn 2004, hard disk drive manufacturers produced@pmately 301 million units, up from 261 milliomits in
2003, according to TrendFocus. According to TremmdiSphard disk drive demand will reach 429 milliorits by 2007, an annual growth rate
of 13.2%.

To meet increasing demands, magnetic diskufaaturers are beginning to invest in new disk &gpirtg equipment that can accommodate
the additional process steps required for perpafaticecording. For example, in 2004 one of theisidy leaders opened a major new media
production facility utilizing Intevac’s 200 Leanstgms. To evaluate the performance of competiriggfisttering equipment, magnetic disk
manufacturers consider the following criteria:

« Cost of OwnershigCost of ownership of disk sputtering equipmentudels factors such as equipment price, manufactyiéid,
throughput, factory floor footprint and uptime. éwer cost of ownership for disk sputtering equiptisra key factor in lowering the
manufacture’ s product cost

« Extendibility and FlexibilityWe believe magnetic disk manufacturers need spngtequipment that can address the needs of
evolving technology roadmaps. This equipment mastdpable of incorporating new process steps artnhial capabilities, including
the processes needed for producing magnetic dégbabdte of perpendicular recording. Additionallygslk manufacturers are improving
longitudinal processes and further developing tlee@sses necessary for perpendicular recordingasadesult, they demand a modular,
flexible system that supports process reconfigonstiand expansions with a minimum of effi

« Compatibility with Existing EquipmentVe believe magnetic disk manufacturers preferaodardize their processes around one or two
disk sputtering equipment suppliers. Once a diskufecturer has selected a particular supplier'spegent, that manufacturer generally
relies upon that supplier's equipment for mucht®fpiroduction capacity and frequently will contintogpurchase any additional
equipment from the same supplier. There are sigamfieconomies of scale related to the use ofgdespiatform in product design,
product qualification, manufacturing and supp
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« Long-term Commitment of Supplieile believe magnetic disk manufacturers need spngtequipment providers that are committed to
meeting current and future technology requiremantsto supporting this equipment throughout itfulde. As a result, magnetic disk
manufacturers increasingly demand a supplier vhighstability and capability to be a Ic-term technology partne

Our Competitive Strength

We are the leading provider of disk sputigmguipment to manufacturers of magnetic media irshdrd disk drives. We believe that our
industry leadership is the result of the followkey competitive strengths:

« Broad Installed Base with Industry Leading CustosnOur MDF-250 disk sputtering system gained wide acceptantieei magnetic dis
manufacturing industry and by the late 1990s wasgoesed in the manufacture of approximately hithe magnetic disks used in hard
disk drives worldwide. We believe that there arpragimately 105 legacy MDP-250 systems and 12 gereration 200 Lean systems
currently in use in production and research anctldgment applications by customers such as Fuiitkite Hitachi Global Storage
Technology, Komag, Maxtor, Seagate and Showa DéMebelieve the majority of our active customessr@sw utilizing most of their
capacity and that there is significant potentialtfeese customers to both resume adding capaditycampgrade the technical capability
their installed base to permit production of higtlensity disks capable of perpendicular recorc

» Technology Leadership with Modular Next Generafialvanced Platformn December 2003, we first delivered our latestegation
disk sputtering system, the 200 Lean, which pravigignificantly enhanced capabilities relative tw imstalled base of MDP-250
systems. The 200 Lean provides higher throughpunt fn smaller footprint, which enables more diskiseaananufactured per square-foot
of clean-room space. The flexible design of the P&&n allows rapid reconfiguration to accommodaitalpct changeovers and new disk
technology. The modular design of the 200 Lean allewvs disk manufacturers to add additional preceps, as advanced magnetic
technologies, such as perpendicular recordingintr@duced

 Long-Term Commitment to Hard Disk Drive IndusiWe have been a hard disk drive equipment provideesl 991. We are one of or
two companies that have delivered ngetieration disk sputtering equipment that can sagyspendicular recording. We have contin
to develop new technologies and introduced thel2@M disk sputtering system to meet the needsdiditianal process steps necessa
economically produce magnetic disks capable ofgmdular recording. In addition, our headquarégeslocated in close proximity to
many of our customers’ hard disk drive developnuamters, and our support center in Singapore sviar customers’ Southeast Asia
manufacturing facilities

Based on these competitive strengths, webelhat we are well positioned to maintain anda@ck our market leading position in the disk
sputtering equipment market. We believe our neeMat 200 Lean system accounts for the majoritpsthiled production capacity of next
generation perpendicular-capable systems.

Our Equipment Strateg!

We believe we can leverage our leadershiftippsn disk sputtering equipment to increase sales to magnetic disk manufacturers and
apply our technology to new markets. The key elamehour strategy are as follows:

* Become Preferred Solutions Provider in the Magnbtik Industry Our goal is to become a preferred solutions pravidenagnetic disk
manufacturers. We believe that our 200 Lean pravale customers with an advanced modular platfhd¢an address their future disk
sputtering needs. We believe we can integrate iadditcapabilities into the 200 Lean, such as aatechhandling of small-form-factor
disks (disks of one inch diameter or less). Wedweliwe are also the leadi
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provider of disk lubrication equipment, the equgnt that is used to apply ultra-thin coatingsutsricant to magnetic disks after
sputtering.

« Deliver Highest Customer Value PropositiOur goal is to maintain our leadership in advandisl sputtering equipment by providi
flexible, extendable equipment with the lowest adfsbwnership. The 200 Lean’s modular design presidustomers the ability to
reconfigure their disk manufacturing systems faigdadechnology shifts and evolving technology roags The 200 Lean’s compact
footprint and increased throughput relative toldgacy MDP-250 systems enables increased outpuitperre foot of factory clean-room
space

* Expand Consumables, Spare Parts and Service GffeWe plan to increase the sale of disk sputteringpgent consumables, spare
parts and service in order to increase our reveppertunity per customer. In addition, growing tnesferings will enable us to deepen
and enhance our customer relationships. We believexpected revenue from these offerings will meliigate the impact of cyclical
downturns in the disk sputtering equipment businéés believe that the close proximity of our seevienter in Singapore to a large
number of hard disk drive manufacturers’ facilitggges us a competitive advantage. We are planoirrgld additional support centers as
required in order to maintain close proximity ta customer media factories as they begin deployment of 20(hlssstems

 Leverage Existing Technology into New Markin addition to expansion within our existing custarbase, we intend to target other
markets where we can apply our expertise in complarufacturing equipment. Our expertise includesathility to design and
manufacture complex, highly automated vacuum mantufsing systems. We are currently in the concegtfaasibility stage of
developing a new manufacturing system that addsessearket other than our traditional hard diskelmanufacturing equipment
market. We are devoting a significant portion of msearch and development resources to this neteray If we conclude that this new
system addresses a sulfficiently large market aadvib can achieve significant profitable marketshthen we plan to manufacture and
ship a number of evaluation units to key custom&fs.do not expect that these activities will regulany revenue during 2005 and
cannot accurately predict when, if ever, we wilhggte significant revenue from these activit

Our Equipment Products
200 Lean Disk Sputtering Syst

The 200 Lean is our latest generation disktepng system. The 200 Lean provides signifigaatihanced capabilities relative to the
installed base of approximately 105 MDP-250 systerhe 200 Lean provides higher throughput from alkmfootprint in a flexible modular
system, which enables more disks to be manufacpeedquare-foot of factory floor space, and isgted to lower overall cost of ownership.

The key features of the 200 Lean include:

* Modular DesignThe 200 Lea’s modular design allows our customers to accomnecatay number of disk manufacturing process s
required by their evolving technology roadmaps. Z8@ Lean consists of a front-end robotic modué thads and unloads disks from
the system, combined with any number of four-stefiocess modules. Typical configurations of theé R8an have from four to five of
these four-station process modules, which resuiléystems capable of 16 to 20 process steps. Addltprocess modules can be easily
added to already installed systems. For examptaseomer could buy a three-module (12-station) [28n to manufacture longitudinal
media and at a later date upgrade the systemite-module (2-station) system to manufacture perpendicular m

« Easy to ReconfigurdMagnetic disk manufacturers produce many diffedsstigns that have short product life cycles, legtlinfrequen
reconfiguration of disk sputtering equipment. Thechmenical design and software control system of@@eLean allows rapid
reconfiguration of systems by our customers. THel2fan is also easily reconfigured to process digks glass or aluminum substrates
of varying diameters and thickness
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« Higher Throughput with Smaller FootprirThe 200 Lean offers higher throughput (up to 8G&&slper hour) and more process stations in
a more compact package than our previous NB@system. We believe that the 200 Lean has titeeht disk throughput per square 1
of factory space for a system capable of manufaxgyerpendicular medi

« High Availability. The 200 Lean is designed to operate seven dayela, ®é hours a day with high availability. The 2Gfan can be run
continuously for a week or more between prevergatinaintenance cycle

« Single Disk ProcessiniThe 200 Lean processes each individual disk seligrthrough a series of sin¢-disk, vacuur-isolated, proces
chambers. “Single-disk” processing assures thdt gatividual disk follows an identical path throutite system, which leads to disk-to-
disk uniformity since each disk sees the same gsocenditions. The vacuume-isolated “single-disldqass also eliminates the disk-to-
disk interaction that can occur in systems that@ss more than one disk in each process cha

« High-Vacuum CapabilityThe 200 Lean operates at significantly better vatievels compared to the installed base of -250s. Bette
vacuum levels generally lead to improved magnetdian performance

« Suite of Process Station Optioitie 200 Lean offers a wide range of process sttimoviding capabilities such as metal deposition,
heating, cooling and carbon overcoating onto batmaum and glass disks. The 200 Lean is alsoyeasiffigurable to manufacture
disks in a variety of diameters and thicknes

MDP-250 Disk Sputtering Syste

Intevac’s legacy MDP-250 system is the madsiely used disk sputtering system in world. We doadi that the MDP-250 is used to
manufacture approximately half the magnetic disleduin hard disk drives. The MDI50 system offers a maximum of twelve processastal

Equipment Business Sales and Marketil

Our Equipment business sales are made ptintarough our direct sales force, although in dapee sell our products through a
distributor, Matsubo. The selling process for oguipment products is a multi-level and long-termagass, involving individuals from
marketing, engineering, operations, customer seri@ senior management. The process involves makimples for the prospective
customer and responding to their needs for modérasds of machine customization. Customers ofeguire a significant number of product
presentations and demonstrations before makinganhgasing decision.

Installing and integrating new equipment igggia substantial investment by a customer. Sdlear systems depend, in significant part,
upon the decision of a prospective customer taampbbsolete equipment or to increase manufactaepgcity by upgrading or expanding
existing manufacturing facilities or by construgtinew manufacturing facilities, all of which typilyainvolve a significant capital commitme:
After making a decision to select our equipment,austomers typically purchase one or more engingaystems to develop and qualify their
production process prior to ordering and takingveey of multiple production systems. Accordingbyr systems have a lengthy sales cycle,
during which we may expend substantial funds andagament time and effort with no assurance thateasf one or more will result.

The production of large complex systems nexguils to make significant investments in inventmth to fulfill customer orders and to
maintain adequate supplies of spare parts to seprieviously shipped systems. In some cases wefaware subsystems and/or complete
systems prior to receipt of a customer order toamour production flow and/or reduce our lead tiMe maintain an inventory of spare parts
at our Singapore subsidiary to support our custerimesingapore and Malaysia. We typically requine customers to pay for systems in three
installments, with a portion of the system prickebi upon receipt of an order, a portion of thetsgsprice billed upon shipment, and the
balance of the system price and any sales tax due
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upon completing installation and acceptance oftrstem at the customer’s factory. All customer paighayments are recorded as customer
advances pending revenue recognition.

Equipment Business Custome

Our disk sputtering equipment customers ithelmagnetic disk manufacturers, such as Fuji Bte¢fomag and Showa Denko and
vertically integrated hard disk drive manufacturestsch as Hitachi Global Storage Technology, Maatat Seagate. The majority of our
customers’ product development programs are lodatdte United States. Our customers’ manufactuféeilities are located in California,
Singapore, Malaysia, Japan and Taiwan. In additifitachi Global Storage Technology is opening a mesdia facility in China.

Our customers’ business tends to be cycheith their peak sales occurring during the sedoaifl of the year. As a result, our customers
have a tendency to order equipment for deliveryiaathllation by midyear, so that they have newacity in place for their peak production
period. For example, our third quarter 2004 revertotaled $34.9 million, and accounted for 50% wf @venues for the entire year of 2004.

Equipment Business Customer Suppt

We provide process and applications suppagtomer training, installation, start-up assiséaaed emergency service support to our
equipment customers. We conduct training classesuiocustomers’ process engineers, machine opsratal machine service personnel.
Additional training is also given to our customdtsing the machine installation. We have a subsjdiaSingapore to support our customer
Southeast Asia. We are planning to add additiomgpart centers to maintain close proximity to oustomers’ factories as they deploy our
systems.

We generally offer a one year warranty oneguipment. In some cases we market extended viapanods beyond 12 months to our
customers. During this warranty period any necgssan-consumable parts are supplied and instalidtbwt charge. Our employees provide
field service support primarily in the United S®t8ingapore and Malaysia. In Japan, field sersiggport is provided by our distributor,
Matsubo, supplemented by our factory support. WeMatsubo stock consumables and spare parts t@dutpp installed base of systems.
These parts are generally available on a 24-haudgebasis.

Equipment Business Competitic

The principal competitive factors affectitng tmarkets for our equipment products include ppeceduct performance and functionality,
integration and manageability of products, custosugport and service, reputation and reliabilitye Wave historically experienced intense
competition worldwide from competitors including élaa Corporation, Ulvac and Unaxis Holdings, Lehach of which has sold substantial
numbers of systems worldwide. Anelva, Ulvac andxigall have substantially greater financial, teéchh marketing, manufacturing and otl
resources than we do. To our knowledge, Intevacfaredva are the only companies that have delivereducts that economically address the
sputtering requirements for manufacture of advamergendicular magnetic disks. However, there @andassurance that any of our
competitors will not develop enhancements to, turkigenerations of, competitive products thatrafteperior price or performance features or
that new competitors will not enter our markets dadelop such enhanced products.

Given the lengthy sales cycle and the sigaift investment required to integrate equipmeotti® manufacturing process, we believe that
once a magnetic disk manufacturer has selectediayar supplier’'s equipment for a specific apption, that manufacturer generally relies
upon that supplier’'s equipment and frequently wadglhtinue to purchase any additional equipmentHat &pplication from the same supplier.
Accordingly, competition for customers in the equgnt industry is intense, and suppliers of equigmaay offer substantial pricing
concessions and incentives to attract new custoargetain existing customers.

7




Table of Contents

Imaging Business

Our Imaging business develops and manufasleetro-optical sensors, cameras, and systermnpehait highly sensitive detection of
photons in the visible and near infrared portiohthe spectrum, allowing vision in extreme low liglituations.

Imaging Industry Overview

Imaging is the capture and display of lighheat, emitted or reflected from an object. A seghof the imaging market has evolved into
specialized technology for the capture of low lighages. Low light imaging involves the capture digplay of light at intensities of
approximately one millionth, or less, of daytimgtii levels.

The U.S. military has determined that lovhtigmaging technology which provides superior uisio nighttime combat creates a significant
tactical advantage. The U.S. military funded theedi@oment of night vision technology, which haslged through three generations to today’
widely deployed “Generation-III" night vision tuheBypically, Generation-lll night vision tubes grkaced in front of a user’s eyes, like a pair
of binoculars, and produce a direct-view, “greemnglimage. The military is now funding the developmh of compact next generation extreme
low light imaging technology that also providesitiigvideo output

The commercial sector has taken a differppt@ach to extreme low light imaging than the railit The initial extreme low light cameras
for the commercial sector were based on chargepledulevice, or CCD, technology, which is able toduce a digital output. CCD
technology relies on long exposure times for itssgterity, and as a result the initial cameras wesed for static applications, like astronomy.
Other commercial markets, such as metrology, tiferes and industrial process monitoring, ado@€® technology. However, cameras for
these new markets compromised sensitivity for dyinapplications with motion or short measuremeangs.

As a result, two distinct forms of low ligletvel imaging have evolved: the Generation-Ill iigision tube technology developed by the
military, which provides direct-view analog imageand CCD technology, which can provide digital gagy, but is not well suited to dynamic
applications.

Our Imaging Solution

We have developed imaging technology thathines the low light capability of Generation-Ilighit vision technology with silicon-based
digital video technology that we believe will enalis to provide a family of portable, cost-effeetlow light sensors and cameras. Elements of
our proprietary solutions include:

Advanced Photocathode TechnologyA photocathode is a semiconductor compound withathility to convert light into electrons. We
developing a family of photocathodes that are ezgyi@d to optimize sensitivity at specific waveldésgtanging from the visible (0.40 microns)
to the near infrared (1.65 microns). Our photocd#scthave high quantum efficiencies (the efficiewityh which incoming light photons are
converted to electrons) and are extremely sendibiwecoming light. Some of our detectors, incogiorg such photocathodes, can detect
incoming light at levels as low as a single photehich is the ultimate level of sensitivity.

Use of Low Power CMOS Imaging Chips Historically, CCD sensors were the primary tealbgy used in digital imaging. Recently,
Complementary Metal Oxide Semiconductor, or CMOSsees, which are generally lower cost and reqeiss power than comparable CCD
sensors, have been developed for consumer imagpligations. We have developed proprietary techgieand capabilities to incorporate
CMOS sensors into our products to take advantagigese improvements. As a result, we believe wkbeilable to offer low cost, low power,
extreme low light imaging sensors for portable aations in price sensitive markets.

Increased Silicon Sensor Sensitivity We have developed proprietary technology to En@MOS and CCD sensors to capture the
accelerated electrons emitted from the photocathoate efficiently. Increasing the electron captefficiency directly increases extreme low
light imaging performance.
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Compact Ultra-High Vacuum Sensor Packagig Our compact ultra-high vacuum sensor packagblesais to combine an imaging chip
with our photocathodes in a thin package whicheidipularly well suited for portable applicationsi@re size and weight are critical.

Low Light Imaging Market Opportunity

We are designing our imaging solutions toradsl next generation military requirements anddgmamic applications of the commercial
markets. Forecast International estimated theamjlimarket for legacy night vision systems andasse programs was $347 million in 2003.

Head Mounted Night Vision Systems Generation-Ill based night vision goggles, whigve excellent extreme low light imaging
performance, were widely deployed by the U.S. anijitfor use by soldiers during the 1990However, these goggles are relatively largeyy
and lack video output. Additionally, potential ads&ries are now deploying Generation-lI+ gogglesufactured outside the United States
with performance levels approaching that of Gememdtl. Accordingly, the U.S. Army has developed ado®ap to maintain extreme low lig
imaging dominance for the individual soldier. A kelgment of this roadmap includes a transition flartky directview night vision goggles
a miniature head mounted imaging system, includimgxtreme low light camera and video display. Hpigroach addresses size and weight
issues and enables connectivity to a wireless rétfieo distribution of the imagery and other infation. These improvements need to be
realized while minimizing the cost of each soldsesystem. The U.S. Army plans to begin deploymétttie type of system by 2009.

Military Long Range Target Identificatior— Current long-range nighttime surveillance systemre based on expensive thermal imaging
camera systems, which image the thermal profile tafrget. These systems produce relatively pootutgn images since they only measure
emitted heat. Long range thermal systems are alatively large, which is a disadvantage for airtsoand portable applications. Accordingly,
there is a need for a cost effective, compact,d@mgye imaging solution that identifies targeta distance that is greater than an adversary’s
detection range capability.

Physical Sciences— Companies in the physical sciences use extremdight imaging to investigate the chemistry amygics of a wide
variety of substances such as foods, medicinegriatst and biological compounds. They need higlsisigity and increased speed and
resolution to increase the accuracy of their mesamants and the productivity of their measuremeuisto

Life Sciences— The life sciences market focuses on increasgirgihderstanding of biology at the cellular leeinhprove health and
quality of life. To image single living cells thisarket needs extreme low light cameras that opatapeeds significantly higher than cameras
that are available today.

Our Imaging Strategy

Collaborate with Leading Development OrganizaticarsWe collaborate with, and receive significantding from, leading government
research organizations for the development of @treme low light technology. These organizatiomsrggly influence development and
procurement of advanced technologies by the U.Bamyi For example, we have collaborated withth8. Army Night Vision Labs, the
world leader in night vision technology, to facilié the development and adoption of our night wisézhnology.

Become Leading Provider of Extreme Low Light Imgdiechnology for the Military— We are actively marketing our extreme low light
imaging technology to the military. Our extreme lbght sensor was selected in 2004 for use in digiead mounted system for the military of
a NATO ally. We believe this system, which is salled to begin deployment in mid 2006, will be tivetfdigital based military head mounted
low light system to be deployed on a large scale. IOVAR technology has been incorporated into WW8apons development programs such
as the Airborne Laser (“ABL"), the Cost Effectivarfeting System (“CETS”"), and the Long-Range Idiatiion System (“LRID") programs.
Our objective is for our extreme low light senstorbecome the standard for military head-mountetiesys and for our LIVAR technology to
become the standard for long-range target ideatitia.
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Leverage Proprietary Sensor and Camera Technologyddress Emerging Commercial Markets We are using our extreme low light
imaging expertise to develop products for commér@rkets. We believe the modular design of ouhifista platform, coupled with our use
of CMOS chips in our configurable sensors, willjhtd decrease our development time and cost to treghysical and life sciences markets.

Lower Manufacturing Costs— The market for our cameras and sensors is ptastic, and low cost manufacturing will be crititathe
rapid proliferation of our products. Our use of foast CMOS sensors and development of wafer lereetndnufacturing, as opposed to single
die manufacturing, are elements of our strateggdioice product cost. Additionally, we have devetbpeprietary ultréhigh vacuum assemb
equipment to automate the assembly of the photodethnd the imaging chip. In developing this systemutilized our expertise in the design
and manufacture of complex, high throughput pradacequipment. This system is designed to decreageosts by increasing throughput
improving process controls and yields.

Build Relationships with Strategic Sales Partneré\tcelerate Access to End Markets We are focusing on the development and
manufacture of extreme low light sensors and casa@ar products are designed to be enabling teobgpdbr larger systems. As a result, we
are developing relationships with leading systerasufiacturers such as Boeing, Lockheed Martin Cartgmr and Northrop Grumman
Corporation, in the military market, and distribig@nd value added resellers in commercial markets.

Our Imaging Products

NightVista Cameras— The NightVista camera is an extreme low light GStbased day/night video camera for security apptios that
currently offers VGA resolution. Its camera bodwisall enough to fit into a two-inch cube, andotsver consumption is less than 2 watts. As
a result, the NightVista is well suited for portallattery-powered applications.

LIVAR Camera and System Produets Our Laser llluminated Viewing and Ranging, oWlAR, target identification system consists of a
near infrared extreme low light camera integratéti an eye-safe laser illuminator. LIVAR uses @la® illuminate a target and a camera to
capture the reflected light and display an imag#. OVAR system is designed to identify targetdiadly detected by forward-looking infrared
or radar technology. Depending on the applicati®dAR can be used to identify targets at distanokegp to 20 kilometers. We do not expect
significant revenues from deployment of LIVAR systein 2005

Our Imaging business generally invoicesetearch and development customers either as cestxarred, or as program milestones are
achieved, depending upon the particular contranigeAs a government contractor, we invoice custsmsing estimated annual rates
approved by the Defense Contracts Audit Agency (ABQ). A majority of our contracts are Cost Plus EdFee (“CPFF”) contracts. On any
CPFF contract, 15% of the fee is withheld pendimgngletion of the program and DCAA’s annual audibaf actual rates. The withheld
portion of the fee is included in accounts receigammtil paid.

Imaging Sales and Marketing

Sales of our military products are made prilpghrough our direct sales force. We are subjedbng sales cycles because many of our
products, such as our LIVAR system, typically mstdesigned into our customers products, whiclofiem complex state-of-the-art products.
These development cycles are often multi-year amcales are contingent on our customer succegsfitiigrating our product into their
product, completing development of their produat #ren obtaining production orders for their prad&ales of these products are also often
dependent on ongoing government funding of defensgrams by the U.S. government and its allies.

Sales of our commercial products, which heeebeen significant to date, will be made throagtombination of system integrators,
distributors and value added resellers and canlkesubject to long sales cycles. We also planarket some lower cost products, such as
NightVista cameras, directly to end use
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Imaging Business Competitio

The principal competitive factors affectingr @roducts include price, extreme low light seamgit, signal to noise ratio, power
consumption, resolution, size, integratabilityjakllity, reputation and customer support and serviVe face substantial competition for our
imaging products and many of our competitors haeatgr resources than we do.

In the military market, ITT Industries and foop Grumman, who are large and well-establishefdnse contractors, are the primary
U.S. manufacturers of image intensifier tubes usddeneration-IIl night vision devices and theiridative products. Our extreme low light
cameras are intended to displace Generation-IHtnitsion based products, and we expect that ITd Morthrop Grumman will continue to
enhance the performance of their products and agigedy promote their sales. Furthermore, CMC Etatits, DRS, FLIR Systems and
Raytheon manufacture cooled infrared sensors amérees which are presently used in long-range tadgetification systems, with which our
LIVAR target identification sensors and cameras pete.

In the physical and life sciences market, panies such as Andor, E2V, Hamamatsu and Ropent8iceffer competitive products. In the
security market, competitive products to our Nigistsl camera based on electron multiplying CCDsiaradje intensifier tubes are offered b
number of companies. Electron multiplying CCDs nfantured by Texas Instruments and E2V also are useaimeras that compete with our
low light level security products.

Manufacturing

We manufacture our Equipment products afacifity in Santa Clara, California. Our equipmemanufacturing operations include
electromechanical assembly, mechanical and vacwgsenably, fabrication of sputter sources, and systesembly, alignment and testing. We
make extensive use of the local supplier infrastmecserving the semiconductor equipment busingsspurchase vacuum pumps, valves,
instrumentation and fittings, power supplies, @ihtviring board assemblies, computers and conimalicry, and custom mechanical parts
made by forging, machining and welding. We alsoehanr own small fabrication center that supportsaengineering departments and makes
some of the machined parts used in our products.

We manufacture our Imaging products at oailifees in Santa Clara, California and Fremont|iféenia. Imaging business manufacturing
includes production of advanced photocathodes ansiass, lasers, cameras and integrated cameransy3te make extensive use of advar
manufacturing techniques and equipment, and outatipas include vacuum, electromechanical and aptigstem assembly. We make use of
the supplier infrastructure serving the semiconolyctamera and optics manufacturing industriesn&mufacturing our sensors, we purchase
wafers, components, processing supplies and chisninananufacturing our camera systems, we puehasted circuit boards,
electromechanical components and assemblies, mieahaomponents and enclosures, optical comporardsomputers.

Intellectual Property

We currently hold 29 patents issued in th@ddhStates and 44 patents issued in foreign cesntand have patent applications pending in
the United States and foreign countries. Of th&J29. patents, 15 relate to our Equipment busiress$ 14 relate to our Imaging business. Of
the foreign patents, 16 relate to our Equipmeninass, and 28 relate to our Imaging business. diitiad, we have the right to utilize certain
patents under licensing arrangements with Littatubtries, Stanford University, The Charles Starifer Laboratory and Alum Rock
Technology. We hold substantial trade secretsarirttaging area related to photocathode fabricatimhprocessing and to silicon chip
packaging for vacuum compatibility and high eleotsensitivity. We also have significant processgnation intellectual property related to
vacuum packaging of a photocathode and a silicomcsmductor chip.
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Customer Concentration

Historically, a significant portion of ourwenue in any particular period has been attribetédkales to a limited number of customers. In
2004, Seagate and our Japanese equipment distriMatsubo, each accounted for more than 10% ofexenues, and in aggregate accounted
for 73% of revenues. In 2003, Komag, Seagate, LeeiiMartin and Matsubo, each accounted for mome 16&6 of our revenues, and in
aggregate accounted for 66% of revenues. In 2082y&e, Toppoly and the U.S. Army CommunicatiBtezztronics Command each accoul
for more than 10% of our revenues, and in aggreg@ateunted for 74% of revenues. Our largest custocteange from period to period, and it
is expected that sales of our products to relatifeal customers will continue to account for a hjgrcentage of our revenues in the
foreseeable future.

Foreign sales accounted for 68% of revenu@904, 64% of revenues in 2003 and 52% of revemu2802. The majority of our foreign
sales are to companies in the Far East or to Wi8panies for use in Far East operations. We aatieifhat sales to these international
customers will continue to be a significant portafrour Equipment revenues.

Employees

At December 31, 2004, we had 191 employeetyding 17 contract employees. Of these 191 enggley68 were in research and
development, 85 in manufacturing, and 38 in adrtriaion, customer support and marketing. Of the &@bloyees, 114 were in the Equipmr
business, 50 were in the Imaging business, ande2@ im corporate.

Compliance with Environmental Regulations

We are subject to a variety of governmerggltations relating to the use, storage, dischdr@edling, emission, generation, manufacture,
treatment and disposal of toxic or otherwise haaasdsubstances, chemicals, materials or wasteré&ethe cost of complying with
government regulations and operating a safe wockpda a normal cost of business and allocate tteo€these activities to all functions,
except where the cost of those activities can dlatisd and charged to a specific function. Theremvhental standards and regulations
promulgated by government agencies in Santa GGakfornia and Fremont, California are rigorous aetla high standard of compliance. We
believe our costs of compliance with these regofetiand standards are comparable to other compapaeating similar facilities in
Santa Clara, California and Fremont, California.

Certain Factors Which May Affect Future Operating Results

Our operating results fluctuate significantly fromuarter to quarter, which may cause the price ofr@tock to decline

Over the last 8 quarters, our revenues partguhave fluctuated between $34.9 million and $dillion. Over the same period our
operating income as a percentage of revenuesutadted between approximately 4% and (90%) ofmees. We anticipate that our revenues
and operating margins will continue to fluctuatee ¥kpect this fluctuation to continue for a varietyeasons, including:

* delays or problems in the introduction and accemanrf our new products, or delivery of existingduwots;

« changes in the demand, due to seasonality and fattters, for the computer systems, storage subsysand consumer electronics
containing disks our customers produce with outesys; anc

» announcements of new products, services or tecpialonnovations by us or our competitc

Additionally, because our systems are pricettie millions of dollars and we sell a relativelynall number of systems, our business is
inherently subject to fluctuations in revenue frqoarter to quarter due to factors such as timingrdérs, acceptance of new systems by our
customers or cancellation of those orders. For @kamve do not currently anticipate resuming volwystem deliveries in our equipment
business
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until the second quarter of 2005 although we reeghsignificant revenue in the third quarter 002@s a result of customer acceptance of
eight 200 Lean systems and the sale of one MDPsg8@m. As a result, we believe that quarter-totea@omparisons of our revenues and
operating results may not be meaningful and tregeglrcomparisons may not be an accurate indicatmrdfiture performance. Our operating
results in one or more future quarters may faih&et the expectations of investment research asalysnvestors, which could cause an
immediate and significant decline in the trading@of our common shares.

If the projected growth in demand for hard disk deis does not materialize and our customers do egiace or upgrade their installe
base of disk sputtering systems, then future saeeur disk sputtering systems will suffer.

From the middle of 1998 until mid-2003, theras very little demand for new disk sputteringtegss, as magnetic disk manufacturers were
burdened with overcapacity and were not investiigaw disk sputtering equipment. By 2003, howeseercapacity had diminished, three of
our customers announced plans for major capacjigmesions, and we shipped our first next gener&@ghLean system. In 2004, one of those
customers took delivery of ten new 200 Leans arudheen of those customers took delivery of a 200nLigeevaluate its capabilities.

Sales of our equipment for capacity exparssime dependent on the capacity expansion plamsrafustomers and upon whether our
customers select our equipment for their capacipaesions. We have no control over our customeqzaesion plans, and we cannot assure
you that they will select our equipment if theyal@and their capacity. Our customers may not implgroapacity expansion plans, or we r
fail to win orders for equipment for those capaeigpansions, which could have a material adverfeetedn our business and our operating
results. In addition, some manufacturers may chtmgeirchase used systems from other manufactarensstomers rather than purchasing
new systems from us. Furthermore, if hard diskefriwere to be replaced by an alternative technasgy primary method of digital storage,
demand for our products would decrease.

Sales of our new 200 Lean disk sputteringesys are also dependent on obsolescence and meglacef the installed base of disk
sputtering equipment. If technological advancemargsdeveloped that extend the useful life of tistalled base of systems, then sales of our
200 Lean will be limited to the capacity expansi@eds of our customers, which would have a matada¢rse effect on our operating results.

We have a recent history of significant losses andy not regain annual profitability. If we do notstablish profitable operations in th
future, then our share price is likely to declin

The majority of our revenues and gross piddite historically been derived from sales of diglattering equipment. Sales of our disk
sputtering equipment were severely depressed frenmiddle of 1998 until mid-2003. Also, our Imagingsiness has yet to earn an annual
profit. We have experienced an operating loss ah e the last five fiscal years. Our operatingslos2004 was $5.2 million, and as of
December 31, 2004, we had an accumulated defi§i26f7 million. To regain and sustain profitabilitye will need to increase gross margins
and generate and sustain substantially higher teveuile maintaining reasonable cost and expensdsleWe cannot assure you that we will
regain profitability in the near future, or at a@hd if we do regain profitability we cannot assyoe that we will be able to sustain profitability
on a going-forward basis. If we fail to regain praiility within the time frame expected by seci@stanalysts or investors, then the market
price of our common stock will likely decline.

We are exposed to risks associated with a highlgcemtrated customer bas

Historically, a significant portion of ourwenue in any particular period has been attribetédkales of our magnetic media sputtering
systems to a limited number of customers. In 200d,0f our customers, in the aggregate, accourte@3% of our revenues. Orders from a
relatively limited number of magnetic disk manutaetrs have accounted for, and likely will continaeaccount for, a substantial portion of
revenues. The loss of, or delays in purchasingby,one of our large customers would significantiguce potential future revenues. The
concentration of our customer base may enable mgs®to demand pricing
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and other terms unfavorable to us. Furthermorectimeentration of customers can lead to extremialitity in revenue and financial results
from period to period. For example, during 2004erayes ranged between $6.5 million in the first toraand $34.9 million in the third quarter.
These factors could have a material adverse affeour business, financial condition and resultsperations.

The majority of our future revenue is dependent aew products. If these new products are not suctdsshen our results of
operations will be adversely affected.

We have invested heavily, and continue t@tyin the development of new products. Our sucitedeveloping and selling new products
depends upon a variety of factors, including oulitglio predict future customer requirements aately, technological advances, total cost of
ownership of our systems, our introduction of neadoicts on schedule, our ability to manufacturesystems cost-effectively and the
performance of our systems in the field. Our neadprct decisions and development commitments muitigate continuously evolving
industry requirements significantly in advance ales.

Our future revenues depend significantlylmmarket acceptance of our 200 Lean disk sputtesistem, which was first delivered in
December 2003. Initial builds of the 200 Lean eigrared high production and warranty costs in comsparto our more established product
lines. Although we believe our margins will improwethe future on our 200 Lean systems, the tindind amount of such improvements are
difficult to predict. Advanced vacuum manufactureqguipment, such as the 200 Lean, is subject ensikte customer acceptance tests after
installation at the customer’s factory. These atage tests are designed to validate reliable tiparto specification in areas such as
throughput, vacuum level, robotics, process peréoroe and software features and functionality. Tiests are generally more comprehensive
for new systems, like the 200 Lean, than for matystems, such as the MDP-250, and are desigrigdttight problems encountered with
early versions of the equipment. Failure to prognptidress any of the problems uncovered in thetge ¢teuld have adverse effects on our
business, including rescheduling of backlog, fa&ilto achieve customer acceptance and thereforauevecognition as anticipated,
unanticipated rework and warranty costs, penaltieaon-performance, cancellation of orders, onmeof products for credit.

We are making a substantial investment telbgva new manufacturing system to address maokie¢s than magnetic disk manufacturing.
Failure to correctly assess the size of the nevketaor to successfully develop a product to céfscévely address the market, or to establish
effective sales and support of the new product dibialve a material adverse effect on our futuremess and profits.

Our LIVAR target identification and low ligtgvel camera technologies are designed to offgrifscantly improved capability to military
customers. We are also developing commercial ptschased on the technology we have developed ilmwaging business. None of our
Imaging products is currently being manufacturetligh volume, and we may encounter unforeseercdiffes when we commence volume
production of these products. Our Imaging busingisequire substantial further investment in sagend marketing, in product development
and in additional production facilities in orderewpand our operations. We cannot assure you thatilvsucceed in these activities or gene
significant sales of these new products. Failuraryf of these products to perform as intendedetepate their markets and develop into
profitable product lines or to achieve their pratitut cost objectives, would have a material adveffect on our business.

Demand for capital equipment is cyclical, which gabts our business to long periods of depresse@neres interspersed with periods
unusually high revenues.

Our Equipment business sells equipment titadaptensive industries, which sell commodity guats such as disk drives. When demand
for these commodity products exceeds capacity, ddrfa new capital equipment such as ours tenthe tamplified. Conversely, when supply
of these commodity products exceeds demand, thani&fior new capital equipment such as ours tentis ttepressed. The hard disk drive
industry has historically been subject to multityegcles because of the long lead times and higtsdovolved in adding capacity.
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The cyclical nature of the capital equipmiedustry means that in some years we will have uallg high sales of new systems, and that in
other years our sales of new systems will be s@vdepressed. The timing, length and volatilitytteése cycles are difficult to predict. These
changes have affected the timing and amounts of@stomers’ capital equipment purchases and invagsiin new technology. For example,
sales of systems for magnetic disk production wgererely depressed from the middle of 1998 until-2003. In addition, our disk
manufacturing customers are generally more serditithe cyclical nature of the hard disk drivetsialy, because many of their customers
have internal magnetic disk manufacturing operatimmd will cut back their purchases of disks frantsile suppliers first in an industry
downturn. If we fail to anticipate or respond guycto the industry business cycle, it could haveaterial adverse effect on our business.

We are required to evaluate our internal control@vfinancial reporting under Section 404 of the Saane«-Oxley Act of 2002 and an
adverse results from such evaluation could resulta loss of investor confidence in our financial perts and have an adverse effect on
our stock price.

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxétyf 2002 (Section 404), beginning with this AmhReport on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2004, we are requiredndsfua report by our management on our internatrobover financial reporting. Suc
report contains, among other matters, an assessrhtérd effectiveness of our internal control ofieancial reporting as of the end of our fis
year, including a statement as to whether or notfrdgarnal control over financial reporting is effive. This assessment must include disclo
of any material weaknesses in our internal cortvelr financial reporting identified by managem@rite report must also contain a statement
that our auditors have issued an attestation reppomanagement’s assessment of our internal centrol

The Committee of Sponsoring OrganizationthefTreadway Commission (COSO) provides a frame@rkompanies to assess and
improve their internal control systems. Auditingu&dard No. 2 provides the professional standardselated performance guidance for
auditors to attest to, and report on, managemasssssment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting under Section 404.
Management’s assessment of internal controls avanéial reporting requires management to makeestibg judgments, and, particularly
because Section 404 and Auditing Standard No. 2amy effective, some of the judgments will beaheas that may be open to interpretation.
Therefore the report is especially difficult to page.

We were not able to assert, in our managegwtifications filed with this Annual Report on o 10-K, that our internal control over
financial reporting is effective as of December 3004, as our management identified three mateaknesses in our internal control over
financial reporting. This or any future inability &ssert that our internal controls over finanglorting are effective for any given reporting
period (or if our auditors are unable to attest tha management’s report is fairly stated or éyttare unable to express an opinion on the
effectiveness of our internal controls), could @us to lose investor confidence in the accuracycampleteness of our financial reports,
which would have an adverse effect on our stookepri

Recently enacted and proposed changes in securiies and regulations will increase our cos

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has requitethges in some of our corporate governance, siesudisclosure and/or compliance
practices. As part of the Act’s requirements, teewBities and Exchange Commission has promulgagedrales on a variety of subjects, in
addition to other rule proposals, and the NASDAQc&tMarket has enacted new corporate governanagglisequirements. These
developments have and will continue to increaseacuaounting and legal compliance costs, and cdattlexpose us to additional liability.

Costs of compliance were significantly large2004 than originally anticipated, and costsafpliance in future periods may continue to
be unpredictable, which could have an adverse teffeour financial results. In addition, we werahble to complete the efforts required in
order to comply with Section 404 in a timely
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manner this year, which impacted our ability to maktimely filing of our Report on Form 10-K. Theran be no guarantee that we will not
face similar issues in future filings.

In addition, such developments may make teterand recruitment of qualified persons to sesmeour board of directors or executive
management more difficult. We continue to evalwate monitor regulatory and legislative developmamis cannot reliably estimate the
timing or magnitude of all costs we may incur assult of the Act or other related legislation egulation.

Our products are complex, constantly evolving anfteo must be customized to individual customer r@gments.

The systems we manufacture and sell in ouigibgent business have a large number of compomeudtare highly complex, which require
us to make substantial investments in researcldanelopment. If we were to fail to develop, mantiae and market new systems or to
enhance existing systems, that failure would havadverse effect on our business. We may experigelegs and technical and manufacturing
difficulties in future introduction, volume prodimh and acceptance of new systems or enhancenhetddition, some of the systems that we
manufacture must be customized to meet individustamer site or operating requirements. In somes;cage market and commit to deliver
new systems, modules and components with advaeegdrés and capabilities that we are still in theeess of designing. We have limited
manufacturing capacity and engineering resourcdsyay be unable to complete the development, maturaand shipment of these prodi
or to meet the required technical specificationgliese products, in a timely manner. Failure tivdethese products on time, or failure to
deliver products that perform to all contractualbmmitted specifications, could have adverse edfentour business, including reschedulin
backlog, failure to achieve customer acceptancelam@fore revenue recognition as anticipated, ticipated rework and warranty costs,
penalties for non-performance, cancellation of osder return of products for credit. In additiove may incur substantial unanticipated costs
early in a product’s life cycle, such as increasedineering, manufacturing, installation and supposts, that we may be unable to pass on to
the customer and that may affect our gross mar@iosietimes we work closely with our customers teettgp new features and products. In
connection with these transactions, we sometimies afperiod of exclusivity to these customers. Afyhese factors could have a material
adverse effect on our business.

Our sales cycle is long and unpredictable, whichgrgres us to incur high sales and marketing expesseith no assurance that a sa
will result.

The sales cycle for our equipment systemsbheaa year or longer, involving individuals from myadifferent areas of our company and
numerous product presentations and demonstratiwreuf prospective customers. Our sales procedbése systems also includes the
production of samples and customization of prodfat®ur prospective customers.

Our Imaging business is also subject to lemlgs cycles because many of our products, suchrddVAR system, often must be designed
into our customers products, which are often comptate-of-the-art products. These developmentsyate often multi-year and our sales are
contingent on our customer successfully integravimgproduct into their product, completing devetegmt of their product and then obtaining
production orders for their product.

As a result, we may not recognize revenumfooir products for extended periods of time afterhave completed development, and made
initial shipments of, our products, during whiciné we may expend substantial funds and manageimentind effort with no assurance that a
sale will result.

We operate in an intensely competitive marketplaaed our competitors have greater resources thandee

In the market for our disk sputtering systems have experienced competition from competisoish as Anelva Corporation, which is a
subsidiary of NEC Corporation and Unaxis Holdingsl, each of which has sold substantial numbessysfems worldwide. Up to 1998, we
also experienced competition from Ulvac Technolsgiac. In the market for our Imaging products,exgerience competition from compar
such
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as ITT Industries, Inc. and Northrop Grumman Coagion, the primary U.S. manufacturers of Generaltibnight vision devices and their
derivative products. Our competitors have substliptyreater financial, technical, marketing, maaatéiring and other resources than we do.
We cannot assure you that our competitors willdeselop enhancements to, or future generationsoofipetitive products that offer superior
price or performance features. Likewise, we camsstire you that new competitors will not enterroarkets and develop such enhanced
products. Accordingly, competition for our custosi&r intense, and our competitors have historiaaffigred substantial pricing concessions
and incentives to attract our customers or retagir existing customers.

Our Imaging business depends heavily on governmemtracts, which are subject to immediate termiratiand are funded ir
increments. The termination of or failure to fundr@ or more of these contracts could have a negatiapact on our operations.

We sell many of our Imaging products and isexvdirectly to the U.S. government, as well agrtme contractors for various
U.S. government programs. Generally, governmentracts are subject to oversight audits by goverrmepresentatives and contain
provisions permitting termination, in whole or iarfy without prior notice at the government’s cameace upon the payment of compensation
only for work done and commitments made at the tifniermination. We cannot assure you that one anerof the government contracts un
which we or our customers operate will not be teated under these circumstances. Also, we cansoteagou that we or our customers we
be able to procure new government contracts tebffe revenues lost as a result of any terminati@xisting contracts, nor can we assure
that we or our customers will continue to remailgdod standing as federal contractors. The losmefor more government contracts by us or
our customers could have a material adverse affecur operating results.

Furthermore, the funding of multi-year gowaent programs is subject to congressional appridpnis, and there is no guarantee that the
U.S. government will make further appropriationeeToss of funding for a government program woelsbitt in a loss of anticipated future
revenues attributable to that program. That couttleiase our overall costs of doing business and hamaterial adverse effect on our opera
results.

In addition, sales to the U.S. governmentiggdrime contractors may be affected by changgsacurement policies, budget
considerations and political developments in théddhStates or abroad. The influence of any ofdHastors, which are beyond our control,
could also negatively impact our financial conditit®Ve also may experience problems associatedadithnced designs required by the
government which may result in unforeseen techno#bglifficulties and cost overruns. Failure to ox@ame these technological difficulties and
the occurrence of cost overruns would have a natadverse effect on our business.

We may not be successful in maintaining and obtaigithe necessary export licenses to conduct operatiabroad, and the Unite
States government may prevent proposed sales &idarcustomers

Many of our Imaging products require exparéhses from United States Government agencies tindé&xport Administration Act, the
Trading with the Enemy Act of 1917, the Arms Expéct of 1976 and the International Trading in ArRsgulations (“ITAR”). We can give
no assurance that we will be successful in obtgiaihthe licenses necessary to export our prod&sgsort to countries which are not
considered by the United States Government tolkes @ also likely to be prohibited. This limitset potential market for our products. Failure
to obtain, or delays in obtaining, or revocatiorpodviously issued licenses would prevent us frefting our products outside the United
States, may subject us to fines or other penahied would have a material adverse effect on osinless, financial condition and results of
operations.

Our sales of disk sputtering systems are dependensubstantial capital investment by our customefies, in excess of the cost of ol
products.

Our customers must make extremely large abpitpenditures in order to purchase our systerdotrer related equipment and facilities.
These costs are far in excess of the cost of @iesys alone. The
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magnitude of such capital expenditures requiresahacustomers have access to large amounts @htapd that they be willing to invest that
capital over long periods of time to be able toghaise our equipment. The magnetic disk manufagtunitustry has not made significant
additions to its production capacity until recen®pme of our potential customers may not be vgltin able to make the magnitude of capital
investment required, especially during a downtareither the overall economy or the hard disk diinistry.

Our stock price is volatile

The market price and trading volume of ounown stock has been subject to significant votgfiind this trend may continue. During
2004, the closing price of our common stock, adedeon The Nasdaq National Market, fluctuated feolow of $3.92 to a high of $17.92 per
share. The value of our common stock may decligardess of our operating performance or prosp€etstors affecting our market price
include:

* our perceived prospect

e variations in our operating results and whethemlalgieve our key business targe

« sales or purchases of large blocks of our st

 changes in, or our failure to meet, our revenueeaardings estimate

« changes in securities analy buy or sell recommendatior

« differences between our reported results and terpected by investors and securities anal

» announcements of new contracts, products or teobiual innovations by us or our competitc

* market reaction to any acquisitions, joint venturestrategic investments announced by us or oupedtitors;
« our high fixed operating expenses, including reseand development expens

« developments in the financial markets; i

« general economic, political or stock market comaisi in the United States and other major regionghich we do busines

Recent events have caused stock prices foy m@mpanies, including ours, to fluctuate in wapselated or disproportionate to their
operating performance. The general economic, paliind stock market conditions that may affectntiaeket price of our common stock are
beyond our control. The market price of our comratmtk at any particular time may not remain thekaiprice in the future. In the past,
securities class action litigation has been indwagainst companies following periods of voltiin the market price of their securities. Any
such litigation, if instituted against us, couldu# in substantial costs and a diversion of mamayd’s attention and resources.

Changes in existing financial accounting standards practices or taxation rules or practices may ausely affect our results ¢
operations.

Changes in existing accounting or taxatidagor practices, new accounting pronouncemensxation rules, or varying interpretations of
current accounting pronouncements or taxation ecbuld have a significant adverse effect onreaults of operations or the manner in
which we conduct our business. Further, such ctsogeld potentially affect our reporting of trantéaes completed before such changes are
effective. For example, we currently are not regdito record stock-based compensation chargesrimga in connection with stock options
grants to our employees. However, Financial Accdognbtandards Board (FASB) 123R, “Stock-Based Paysiavill require us to record
stock-based compensation charges to earnings fologee stock option grants commencing in the thirdrter of 2005. Such charges will
negatively impact our earnings.
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Our future success depends on international saleslahe management of global operatio

International sales accounted for 68% ofl tat@enues in 2004. We expect that internationi@ssaill continue to account for a significant
portion of our total revenue in future years. We subject to various challenges related to the gemant of global operations, and
international sales are subject to risks includmg, not limited to regional economic and politicahditions, challenges in staffing and
managing foreign operations, changes in currenoyrels, potentially adverse tax consequences, réiffee in enforcement of intellectual
property rights and fluctuation in interest andrency exchange rates. Any of these factors cowe hanaterial adverse effect on our business
and operating results.

Our dependence on suppliers for certain parts, soofi¢hem sol-sourced, makes us vulnerable to manufacturing intgptions and
delays, which could affect our ability to meet caster demand.

We are a manufacturing business. Purchasgsl ganstitute the largest component of our prodost. Our ability to manufacture depends
on the timely delivery of parts, components, angasgemblies from suppliers. We obtain some of #yechmponents and sub-assemblies used
in our products from a single supplier or a limiggdup of suppliers. If any of our suppliers faildeliver quality parts on a timely basis, we
may experience delays in manufacturing, which coesailt in delayed product deliveries or increasests to expedite deliveries or develop
alternative suppliers. Development of alternativpmiers could require redesign of our productsy Anall of these factors could have a
material adverse effect on our business and operagisults.

Our business depends on the integrity of our inggdtual property rights

The success of our business depends upagritgtef our intellectual property rights and wencat assure you that:

« any of our pending or future patent applicationt lng allowed or that any of the allowed applicagawill be issued as paten

« any of our patents will not be invalidated, deemgdnforceable, circumvented or challeng

« the rights granted under our patents will providepetitive advantages to

« any of our pending or future patent applicationt issue with claims of the scope that we soudtdt all;

« other parties will not develop similar productspticate our products or design around our patemt

« our patent rights, intellectual property laws or agreements will adequately protect our intellatproperty or competitive positio

Failure to protect our intellectual property rightadequately could have a material adverse effecoom business

We provide products that are expected to fawg useful lives and that are critical to ourtonsers’ operations. From time to time, as part
of business agreements, we place portions of delléatual property into escrow to provide assueatocour customers that our technology will
be available to them in the event that we are unbsupport them at some point in the future.

From time to time, we have received claina the are infringing third parties’ intellectualoperty rights. We cannot assure you that third
parties will not in the future claim that we hawéringed current or future patents, trademarkstbeoproprietary rights relating to our produ
Any claims, with or without merit, could be timersuming, result in costly litigation, cause prodsitipment delays or require us to enter into
royalty or licensing agreements. Such royalty cerising agreements, if required, may not be aveila terms acceptable to us. Any of the
foregoing could have a material adverse effectuarbosiness.
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Our business is based in Northern California, wheoperating costs are high and competition for empées is intense

Our U.S. operations are located in SantaaCl@alifornia and Fremont, California, where thstaaf doing business and recruiting
employees is high. Failure to manage these codtxodd have a material adverse effect on our atieg results. Additionally, our operating
results depend, in large part, upon our abilityetain and attract qualified management, engingerrarketing, manufacturing, customer
support, sales and administrative personnel. Furtbee, we compete with similar industries, suclhassemiconductor industry, for the same
pool of skilled employees. Failure to attract aethin qualified personnel could have a materiakasky effect on our business.

Business interruptions, such as earthquakes or athatural or man-made disasters, could disrupt our operations and/edely affec
our business.

Our operations are vulnerable to interruptigrfire, earthquake, power loss, telecommunicati@ilure, unauthorized intrusion and other
catastrophic events beyond our control. Our coetiey plans for addressing these kinds of eventsimotipe sufficient to prevent system
failures and other interruptions in our operatitret have a material adverse effect on our busiredditionally, our suppliers’ suffering
similar business interruptions could have an adveffect on our manufacturing ability. If any natuor man-made disasters do occur, our
operations could be disrupted for prolonged periadsch could have a material adverse effect onbmsiness.

Changes in demand caused by fluctuations in intdraed currency exchange rates may reduce our intational sales

Sales and operating activities outside ofuhéed States are subject to inherent risks, ghialy fluctuations in the value of the U.S. dollar
relative to foreign currencies, tariffs, quotasetmand other market barriers, political and ecdodnstability, restrictions on the export or
import of technology, potentially limited intellectl property protection, difficulties in staffingmé managing international operations and
potentially adverse tax consequences. We earméisant portion of our revenue from internatiosales, and there can be no assurance that
any of these factors will not have an adverse effacour ability to sell our products or operatéside the United States.

We currently quote and sell the majority af products in U.S. dollars. From time to time, mvay enter into foreign currency contracts in
an effort to reduce the overall risk of currenayctlations to our business. However, there carpbesaurance that the offer and sale of
products denominated in foreign currencies, anddlaed foreign currency hedging activities, witlt adversely affect our business.

Our principal competitor for disk sputteriaguipment is based in Japan and has a cost seuztsed on the Japanese yen. Accordingly,
currency fluctuations could cause the price ofmaducts to be more or less competitive than oimcjgral competitor’s products. Currency
fluctuations will decrease or increase our costcstire relative to those of our competitors, witgohld lessen the demand for our products and
affect our competitive position.

We routinely evaluate acquisition candidates andhet diversification strategies

We have completed a number of acquisitionsaasof our efforts to expand and diversify ousiness. For example, our business was
initially acquired from Varian Associates in 19%¥e acquired our gravity lubrication and rapid thathprocessing product lines in two
acquisitions. We sold the rapid thermal procespigluct line in November 2002. We also acquiredRBE electron beam processing
business in late 1997, and subsequently closedtisisiess. We intend to continue to evaluate newiaition candidates, divestiture and
diversification strategies. Any acquisition invadveumerous risks, including difficulties in the iasiation of the acquired company’s
employees, operations and products, uncertainssscéated with operating in new markets and workiitg new customers, and the potential
loss of the acquired company’s key employees. Aafthlly, unanticipated expenses, difficulties andsequences may be incurred relating to
the integration of technologies, research and dgwveént, and administrative and other
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functions. Any future acquisitions may also resulpotentially dilutive issuance of equity secu#j acquisition- or divestiture-related write-
offs or the assumption of debt and contingent liéds. Any of the above factors could have a matexdverse effect on our business.

We use hazardous materials and are subject to rigkaon-compliance with environmental and safety regulatisi

We are subject to a variety of governmerggutations relating to the use, storage, dischdrgedling, emission, generation, manufacture,
treatment and disposal of toxic or otherwise hamasdsubstances, chemicals, materials or wastee faivto comply with current or future
regulations, such failure could result in suspemsibour operations, alteration of our manufactgimocess, or substantial civil penalties or
criminal fines against us or our officers, direstor employees. Additionally, these regulationsld¢@equire us to acquire expensive
remediation or abatement equipment or to incurtsumisl expenses to comply with them. Failure topgrly manage the use, disposal or
storage of, or adequately restrict the releashadfardous or toxic substances could subject ugndisant liabilities.

Future sales of shares of our common stock by officers, directors and affiliates could cause outogk price to decline

Substantially all of our common stock maysbé without restriction in the public markets. 8saheld by our directors, executive officers
and affiliates are subject to volume and manneatd restrictions, and as otherwise describeddridtiowing sentence. We have an agreement
with Foster City LLC and Redemco LLC that givesteo€ity and Redemco the right to require us ® dilregistration statement on Form S-3,
registering the resale of all shares of our comstonk held by Foster City and Redemco. Sales abatantial number of shares of common
stock in the public market or the perception thase sales could occur could materially and adiyeask=ct our stock price and make it more
difficult for us to sell equity securities in thetéire at a time and price we deem appropriate.

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents andder California law could prevent or delay a changecontrol, which could
negatively impact the value of our common stockdigcouraging a favorable merger or acquisition ofu

Our articles of incorporation authorize ooald of directors to issue up to 10,000,000 shafreseferred stock and to determine the pow
preferences, privileges, rights, including votinghts, qualifications, limitations and restrictiookthose shares, without any further vote or
action by the shareholders. The rights of the haldé our common stock will be subject to, and rhayadversely affected by, the rights of the
holders of any preferred stock that we may issuberfuture. The issuance of preferred stock cboakk the effect of delaying, deterring or
preventing a change in control and could adveratgct the voting power of your shares. In additiprovisions of California law could mak
more difficult for a third party to acquire a majgrof our outstanding voting stock by discouragambostile bid, or delaying or deterring a
merger, acquisition or tender offer in which ouaholders could receive a premium for their sharesproxy contest for control of our
company or other changes in our management.

Iltem 2.  Properties

We lease a 119,583 square foot facility int&&Clara, California. The two-story facility indes offices, manufacturing, engineering labs
and clean rooms. All of our operations, with theeption of our Singapore customer support officg @asensor fabrication facility, are housed
at the Santa Clara facility. In February 2004, weceited an amendment to the lease for the Santa falality which extended the lease for
five years. The lease for the Santa Clara faaildw expires in March 2012. We also lease a faailftapproximately 3,600 square feet in
Singapore to house the Singapore customer supm@hization. This lease expires in March 2006.amuary 2004, we entered into a lease for
a sensor fabrication facility. This 9,505 squaret facility is located in Fremont, California. Thease for the Fremont facility expires in
February 2013. We operate with two full manufactgrshifts. We believe that we have sufficient pridie capacity to meet our current nee

21




Table of Contents

Iltem 3. Legal Proceeding:

From time to time, we are involved in claiared legal proceedings that arise in the ordinanrsmof business. We expect that the number
and significance of these matters will increaselashusiness expands. Any claims or proceedingsistgas, whether meritorious or not, could
be time consuming, result in costly litigation, uég significant amounts of management time, rasauthe diversion of significant operational
resources, or require us to enter into royaltyigarising agreements which, if required, may noaveglable on terms favorable to us or at all.
We are not presently party to any lawsuit or prdaegthat, in our opinion, is likely to serioushaim our business.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of SecurHolders

No matters were submitted to a vote of ségimdlders during the fourth quarter of the fisgahr covered by this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

Certain information about Intevac’s directargl executive officers as of March 22, 2005 igtidbelow:

Name Age Position

Executive Officers and Director

Norman H. Pont 66 Chairman of the Boar

Kevin Fairbairn 51 President, Chief Executive Officer and Direc

Verle Aebi 50 President of Photonics Technology Divis

Charles B. Eddy llI 54 Vice President, Finance and Administration, ChigfaRcial
Officer, Treasurer and Secretze

Luke Marusiak 42 Chief Operating Office

David Dury(1)(3) 56 Director

Stanley J. Hill(3] 63 Director

David N. Lambeth(2 57 Director

Robert Lemos(1)(2 64 Director

Arthur L. Money(1) 65 Director

Other Key Officers

Kimberly Burk 39 Director, Human Resourci

Stephen Gustafsc 33 Director, Imaging Operatior

Ralph Kerns 58 Vice President, Business Development, Equipmerdirits

Christopher Lan 38 Vice President and General Manager, Commercial imge
Division

(1) Member of Audit Committe
(2) Member of Compensation Committ
(3) Member of Nominating and Governance Commi
Mr. Pondis a founder of Intevac and has served as Chaiohtre Board since February 1991. Mr. Pond sergeirasident and Chief

Executive Officer from February 1991 until July B0&nd again from September 2001 through Januarg. 200 Pond holds a BS in physics
from the University of Missouri at Rolla and an MSphysics from the University of California at LAsigeles.

Mr. Fairbairn joined Intevac as President and Chief Executivéc®ffin January 2002 and was appointed a dirent&ebruary 2002.
Before joining Intevac, Mr. Fairbairn was employmdApplied Materials from July 1985 to January 20@@st recently as Vice-President and
General Manager of the Conductor Etch
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Organization with responsibility for the Siliconc&aMetal Etch Divisions. From 1996 to 1999, Mr. Baiirn was General Manager of Applied
Materials’ Plasma Enhanced Chemical Vapor Depasiiosiness Unit and from 1993 to 1996, he was Geémdanager of Applied Materials’
Plasma Silane CVD Product Business Unit. Mr. Fairbaolds an MA in Engineering Sciences from Carapei University.

Mr. Aebihas served as President of the Photonics Divisiaresluly 2000. Mr. Aebi served as General Manafjéine Photonics Division
since May 1995 and was elected as a Vice Presadehe Company in September 1995. From 1988 thrdi@gg#, Mr. Aebi was the
Engineering Manager of our night vision businedsere he was responsible for new product developimeht areas of advanced
photocathodes and image intensifiers. Mr. Aebi 8@®BS in physics and an MS in electrical engimeefiom Stanford University.

Mr. Eddyhas served as Vice President, Finance and Adnatiwtr, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Sesesince April 1991.
Mr. Eddy holds a BS in engineering science fromWéversity of Virginia and an MBA from DartmouthoCege.

Mr. Marusiakjoined Intevac as Chief Operating Officer in A@2004. Before joining Intevac, Mr. Marusiak was eaygd by Applied
Materials from July 1991 to April 2004, most redgrats Senior Director of North American OperatioRseviously, Mr. Marusiak managed
Applied Materials’ Field Operations in North Ameaidvir. Marusiak holds a Bachelor’s in electricagjgreering from Gannon University and
an MS in Teleprocessing Science from the Univeisitgouthern Mississippi.

Mr. Dury has served as a director of Intevac since July 2002Dury is a cofounder of Mentor Capital Group, a venture cagitah. From
1996 to 2000, Mr. Dury served as Senior Vice-Pesidnd Chief Financial Officer of Aspect Develope software development firm.
Mr. Dury holds a BA in psychology from Duke Univigysand an MBA from Cornell University. He is alaadirector of Phoenix Technologies
Ltd.

Mr. Hill was appointed as a director of Intevac in Marchd200r. Hill joined Kaiser Aerospace and Electron@srporation (“Kaiser”), a
privately held manufacturer of electronics and teteoptical systems, in 1969 and served as Chiethtive Officer and Chairman of both
Kaiser and K Systems, Inc., Kaisepgarent company, from 1997 to 2000. Prior to pjzoéntment as Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Hill sed ir
a number of executive positions at Kaiser. Mr. Holds a BS in Mechanical Engineering from the @néity of Maine and a Master of
Engineering from the University of Connecticut dras completed post graduate studies at the UniyersEanta Clara business school. He is
also a director of First Aviation Services, Inc.

Dr. Lambethhas served as a director of Intevac since May 1B86._ambeth has been Professor of both Electdndl Computer
Engineering and Material Science Engineering ah€gie Mellon University since 1989. Dr. Lambeth wasociate Director of the Data
Storage Systems at Carnegie Mellon University fd®89 to 1999. Since 1988, Dr. Lambeth has beeowmer of Lambeth Systems, an
engineering consulting and research firm. Dr. Latintb@lds a BS in electrical engineering from thevdrsity of Missouri and a Ph.D. in
physics from the Massachusetts Institute of Teatmol

Mr. Lemoshas served as a director of Intevac since Augud2 28ir. Lemos retired from Varian Associates, limc1999 after 23 years,
including serving as Vice-President and Chief FaianOfficer from 1988 to 1999. Mr. Lemos has aiBBusiness from the University of
San Francisco, a JD in law from Hastings Collegg@nLLM in law from New York University.

Mr. Moneyhas served as a director of Intevac since Octob@B.2Mr. Money served as the Assistant SecretaBedénse for Command,
Control, Communication and Intelligence (C3I) fr@watober 1999 to April 2001. Prior to his Senatefiroration in that role, he was the Ser
Civilian Official, Office of the Assistant Secreyaof Defense (C3l) from February 1998. Mr. Monegaaserved as the Chief Information
Officer for the Department of Defense from 1992@®91. From 1996 to 1998, he served as Assistametey of the Air Force for Research,
Development and Acquisition. Prior to his governtresrvice, Mr. Money was President of ESL Inc.ubsidiary of TRW, from 1990 to 1995,
and prior to 1990 he held senior management pasitigth ESL Inc. and the TRW Avionics and Surveita Group. He is also a director of
CACI International, Essex Corporation, Intelli-Cke8afeNet, Inc., Silicon Graphics, Inc. and
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Terremark Worldwide, Inc. Mr. Money holds an MSMiechanical Engineering from the University of Sa@tara and a BS in Mechanical
Engineering from San Jose State University.

Ms. Burkhas served as Human Resources Director since M. Z0ior to joining Intevac, Ms. Burk served astéun Resources Manager
of Moen, Inc. from 1999 to 2000 and served as HuResources Manager of Lawson Mardon from 1994 891Ms. Burk holds a BS in
Sociology from Northern lllinois University.

Mr. Gustafsorhas served as Director of Imaging Operations diet®uary 2003. Before joining Intevac in May 2002, Gustafson was
employed by Applied Materials as a Sr. Operatiorm&fer in the Conductor Etch Organization. Mr. &fgsin holds a BA in Humanities and
an MS in Industrial Engineering from San Jose Sthtiversity.

Mr. Kernsjoined Intevac as Vice President, Business Deveéayiraf the Equipment Products Division in Augusd20Before joining
Intevac, Mr. Kerns was employed by Applied Matesiitbm April 1997 to November 2002, most recentyManaging Director for Business
Development for the Process Modules Group. PrelyoMyr. Kerns was General Manager of Applied Madtsi Metal Etch Division from
2000 to 2002. From 1998 to 2000, Mr. Kerns was @&dbirector for North America Multinational Accoumand from 1997 to 1998, he was
General Manager of Applied Materials’ DielectrickDivision. Mr. Kerns holds a BS in Chemistry frahe University of Idaho and a PhD in
Theoretical Chemistry from Princeton University.

Mr. Lanehas served as General Manager of the Commercigihgdivision since he joined Intevac in July 2G081 was elected a Vice-
President in February 2003. Before joining Inteemn 1990 to July 2002, Mr. Lane was employed Ippked Materials, most recently as
Director of Engineering, CVD and Etch, in the Coottu Etch Organization. Mr. Lane holds a BS in Matkal Engineering, a MS in
Engineering Management and a MBA, all from CalifarRolytechnic State University at San Luis Obispo.

PART Il

Item 5.  Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Shareholder Matters andusr Purchases of Equity Securitit
Price Range of Common Stock

Our common stock is listed on The Nasdaqadwati Market under the symbol “IVAC.” As of Decemi&dr, 2004, there were approximately
132 holders of record of our common stock. Becawiay of our shares of common stock are held bydysoaind other institutions on behali
shareholders, we are unable to estimate the totaber of shareholders represented by these rectadrs.

The following table sets forth the high and/Iclosing sale prices per share as reported oriNEseaqg National Market for the periods
indicated.

High Low

Fiscal 2003

First Quarte $ 5.07 $ 3.5z

Second Quarte 6.87 3.7t

Third Quartel 9.9t 6.72

Fourth Quarte 17.3¢ 9.7C
Fiscal 2004

First Quarte $ 17.92 $ 9.8¢

Second Quarte 11.3¢ 8.47

Third Quartel 9.4¢€ 3.92

Fourth Quarte 7.9 5.01
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Dividend Policy

We currently anticipate that we will retaiare@arnings, if any, for use in the operation af lbusiness and do not expect to pay cash
dividends on our capital stock in the foreseeaieré.

ltem 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Da

The following table presents our selectediitial data and is qualified by reference to, dralikl be read in conjunction with, the
consolidated financial statements of Intevac, idiclg the notes thereto, and Management’s DiscussionAnalysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations, each appearing elsewhelgsimeport.

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(In thousands, except per share data)

Consolidated Statement of Operations Date
Net revenues

Systems and componel $ 61,32¢ $ 27,73¢ $ 27,62t $ 43,59¢ $ 30,07
Technology developmel 8,28¢ 8,55¢ 6,15¢ 7,88¢ 5,97¢
Total net revenue 69,61t 36,29¢ 33,78 51,48¢ 36,04¢
Cost of net revenue
Systems and componet 45,52¢ 19,68¢ 20,00¢ 30,02t 20,65¢
Technology developmel 6,85¢ 6,03z 5,15(C 7,98¢ 6,022
Goodwill write-off — — — — 1,05¢
Inventory provision: 1,37¢ 743 1,31¢ 3,71¢ 6,32%
Total cost of net revenus 53,75¢ 26,46¢ 26,47" 41,72¢ 34,05¢
Gross profil 15,85¢ 9,83( 7,30¢ 9,75t 1,99(
Operating expense
Research and developmt 11,58( 12,031 10,84¢ 14,47¢ 10,57¢
Selling, general and administrati 9,52t 8,44¢ 7,752 6,74t 4,41
Restructuring and othu — — — (63€)
Total operating expens: 21,10¢ 20,48¢ 18,59¢ 21,22 14,35
Operating los: (5,249 (10,65%) (11,289 (11,469 (12,369
Interest expens (55) (1,787 (2,98]) (2,917) (3,037
Interest income and other income, 1,07( 177 16,45 2,47¢ 3,07
Income (loss) before income tax (4,234 (12,269 2,18 (11,907 (12,329
Provision for (benefit from) income tax 11C 38 (6,592) 5,02¢ —
Net income (loss $ 4349 $ (12309 $ 877/ 3 (16939 $ (12,32
Basic earnings per shai
Net income (loss $ (022) % 095 % 0.7¢ $ 142 % (1.04)
Shares used in per share calculati 19,74¢ 12,94¢ 12,077 11,95t 11,80:
Diluted earnings per shat
Net income (loss $ (022) % 095 % 0.6¢€ $ 142 % (1.04)
Shares used in per share calculati 19,74¢ 12,94¢ 15,26: 11,95t 11,80:
Consolidated Balance Sheet Datze
Cash, cash equivalents and s-term investment $ 42,03¢ $ 19,507 $ 28,45 $ 18,157 $ 38,40
Working capital 53,10( 22,63¢ 31,30¢ 27,16( 41,09:
Total asset 79,62: 55,97¢ 60,29¢ 60,16t 83,93¢
Long-term debi — 30,56¢ 37,54t 41,24"
Total shareholde’ equity 69,37¢ 30,86¢ 10,54¢ 1,40¢ 17,80«
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ltem 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drkResults of Operation

The following discussion and analysis contains faoMooking statements which involve risks and utadeties. Words such as “believes,”
“expects,” “anticipates” and the like indicate foravd-looking statements. These forward looking stetets include comments related to our
projected revenue, gross margin, operating expemsditability, income tax expense, effective tater capital spending and cash balances;
adequacy of our cash balances to fund our operatiprojected volatility in our financial resultsy@ected customer requirements for new
capacity and technology upgrades for our instalbede of magnetic disk manufacturing equipment amehwand if, our customers will place
orders for these products; projected change fromiggeto period in the customers, and location o§taumers, that constitute the majority of
revenues; the length of development, marketingdepdbyment cycles for military customers; Imaggability to proliferate its technology in
major military weapons programs and to develop aricbduce commercial products; and the timing olivary and/or acceptance of our
backlog for revenue. Our actual results may diffexterially from the results discussed in the fordvlyoking statements for a variety of
reasons, including those set forth under “Certackors Which May Affect Future Operating Resultatiashould be read in conjunction with
the Consolidated Financial Statements and relateteblcontained elsewhere in this Annual Report@mFL0-K.

Overview

Our operations include two businesses, anpagent business and an Imaging business. The Eguiphusiness designs, manufactures,
markets and services complex capital equipmentdijabsits highly engineered thin films of matedato disks used in hard disk drives. Our
Imaging business develops and manufactures eleptical sensors, cameras and systems that pemhiyrgensitive detection of photons in
the visible and near infrared portions of the spaut allowing vision in extreme low light situatien

Equipment Business

In the early 1990s we developed a systemivilb®-250, to deposit magnetic films and protectivercoats onto magnetic disks used in
hard disk drives. This system gained wide accepgtanc by the late 1990s was being used to manuéaapproximately half of the disks used
in hard disk drives worldwide. In late 2003, wedntuced a new system, the 200 Lean. As of Dece2&t we had delivered twelve 200 L¢
systems. We believe that there are a total of aqipiattely 117 MDP-250 and 200 Lean systems curréntlyse in production and research and
development applications. The hard disk drive itgusas gone through significant consolidation, #drete are now only seven significant
manufacturers of magnetic disks, some of whom mlanufacture hard disk drives. As a result of angiasingly smaller number of customers
and the high average selling price of our produmts,equipment revenues tend to be volatile fromrtgu to quarter. In addition, our Equipm
business has historically been subject to cagiahding cycles. For example, in the period from5l88%ough the middle of 1998, we sold
$300 million of disk manufacturing equipment. I theriod from the middle of 1998 thru 2003 our diskiipment revenues averaged
approximately $20 million per year and consistethefsale of a limited number of systems, technolgagrades, parts and service for the
installed base of our systems. In 2004 our salekséfmanufacturing equipment grew to approxima$d9 million as a result of sales of our
new 200 Lean system.

We believe the majority of magnetic disk mi@eturers are now utilizing most of their capacitye believe that the expected introduction
in 2005 of high density disks based on perpendigeleording techniques will also require disk mautfirers to significantly upgrade the
technical capability of their installed base of mfatturing equipment to accommodate the additionatber of process steps predicted to be
required by perpendicular recording technology noagpis.

We also have historically manufactured bathasition and rapid thermal processing equipmead irs the manufacture of flat panel
displays. Since 2000, cumulative revenues fromssafldélat panel display manufacturing systems &at836.5 million. In late 2002 we sold our
rapid thermal processing product line to Photondyits of San Jose, California. Since then, we fiaagsed our sputtering equipment efforts
on disk manufacturing and have not taken orderaifigrnew flat panel display manufacturing systems.
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Imaging Business

Our Imaging business develops and manufasleetro-optical sensors, cameras and systempeéhait highly sensitive detection of
photons in the visible and near infrared portiohthe spectrum, allowing imaging in extreme lowhligituations. Our military products inclu
extreme low light sensors and cameras for usedrt-¢tb medium-range military applications and LIVARRmeras and systems for positive
target identification at long range. The majorifytiee funding for our Photonics Technology Divis®activities has historically come from
research and development contracts with the Ui8tates Government and its contractors, with tharza being funded internally. In 2004,
began working with a foreign customer on the dewalent of a low light camera for use in that custosmilitary head mounted system,
which our customer is under contract to delivetharmed forces of a NATO country. In 2004, wedredelivering two standard products,
NightVista low light cameras and Model 400 LIVARmaras.

Developing advanced products for the militamyolves long development cycles, as products nibke@ugh successive multi-year stages of
technology demonstration, engineering and manufiagtyroduct development, prototype production #reh product deployment. Each stage
in this process requires ongoing government funditogdate, substantially all of our Imaging bussesvenues has been derived from contract
research and development, rather than product $aldaly 2002, in order to shorten the time to kedand to increase the number of markets
for our imaging products, we began to fund develephnof imaging products for commercial markets. &ries from these activities have not
yet been significan

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements atated disclosures in conformity with accountintnpiples generally accepted in the United
States of America (“US GAAP”) requires managemennake judgments, assumptions and estimates fieat &ie amounts reported. Note 2
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements desethe significant accounting policies used i pheparation of the consolidated financial
statements. Certain of these significant accourgiviizies are considered to be critical accounginlicies, as defined below.

A critical accounting policy is defined asedinat is both material to the presentation offmancial statements and requires management tc
make difficult, subjective or complex judgmentsttbauld have a material effect on our financialditions and results of operations.
Specifically, critical accounting estimates have fbllowing attributes: 1) We are required to maksumptions about matters that are highly
uncertain at the time of the estimate; and 2) dbffié estimates we could reasonably have used,amges in the estimate that are reasonably
likely to occur, would have a material effect orr §inancial condition or results of operations.

Estimates and assumptions about future ewatgheir effects cannot be determined with cetyalMWe base our estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions believbe applicable and reasonable under the ciraunmoss. These estimates may change as
new events occur, as additional information is it and as our operating environment changes eTtteanges have historically been minor
and have been included in the consolidated findstééements as soon as they become known. Iniagdibanagement is periodically faced
with uncertainties, the outcomes of which are nithiw its control and will not be known for proloed periods of time. Many of these
uncertainties are discussed in the prior sectiditiesh“Certain Factors Which May Affect Future @pting Results.” Based on a critical
assessment of our accounting policies and the iymgigjudgments and uncertainties affecting theli@ption of those policies, management
believes that our consolidated financial statemargdairly stated in accordance with US GAAP, anavide a meaningful presentation of our
financial condition and results of operation.

We believe the following critical accountipglicies affect the more significant judgments astimates we make in preparing our
consolidated financial statements. We also haverdtay accounting policies and accounting estimaided to the collectibility of trade
receivables, valuation of deferred tax assets aoibiype product costs. We believe that these aheounting policies and other accounting
estimates either

27




Table of Contents

do not generally require us to make estimates aagihpents that are as difficult or subjective, as iess likely that they would have a material
impact on our reported results of operation foivaig period.

Revenue Recognitio

Certain of our system sales with customeeptance provisions are accounted for as multieieht arrangements. If we have previously
met defined customer acceptance levels with theifspéype of system, then we recognize revenudHerfair market value of the system upon
shipment and transfer of title, and recognize rereefor the fair market value of installation andegtance services when those services are
completed. We estimate the fair market value ofitktallation and acceptance services based oaatual historical experience. For systems
that have generally not been demonstrated to miedupt specifications prior to shipment, revenugaition is typically deferred until
customer acceptance. For example, while initighsigints of our 200 Lean system were recognizedef@rue upon customer acceptance
during 2004, we expect that 200 Leans will be galhebe recognized for revenue upon shipment du2iogs.

In some instances, hardware that is not ¢éissémthe functioning of the system may be dakdkafter acceptance of the system. In these
cases, we estimate the fair market value of theassential hardware as if it had been sold onralstbbne basis, and defer recognizing reve
on that value until the hardware is delivered.

We perform best efforts research and devesgpiiwork under various government-sponsored reBeametracts. These contracts are a
mixture of cost-plus-fixed-fee (“CPFF”) and firnx&d-price (“FFP”). Revenue on CPFF contracts isgeized in accordance with contract
terms, typically as costs are incurred. RevenuERI contracts is generally recognized on the pémgerof-completion method based on costs
incurred in relation to total estimated costs. iowns for estimated losses on FFP research castae recorded in the period in which such
losses are determined.

Inventories

Inventories are priced using standard cegtich approximate first-in, first-out, and are sthtit the lower of cost or market. The carrying
value of inventory is reduced for estimated exeassobsolescence by the difference between its eost the estimated market value based on
assumptions about future demand. We evaluate ttemiary carrying value for potential excess ancbtdis inventory exposures by analyzing
historical and anticipated demand. In additionemwries are evaluated for potential obsolescenedalthe effect of known and anticipated
engineering change orders and new products. lbhdemand were to be substantially lower than eggdy additional inventory adjustments
would be required, which could have a material aslveffect on our business, financial condition eegililts of operation.

Warranty

We provide for the estimated cost of warramben revenue is recognized. Our warranty is patraot terms and is typically 12 months
from customer acceptance. We also sell extendethntées beyond 12 months to some customers. Wesigaated repair or replacement ci
along with our actual warranty experience to deteenour warranty obligation. We exercise judgmandétermining the underlying estimates.
Should actual warranty costs differ substantiaibnf our estimates, revisions to the estimated wérr@ability would be required, which could
have a material adverse effect on our businessndial condition and results of operations.

Results of Operations

Net revenued\et revenues consist primarily of sales of equipnused to manufacture magnetic disks, equipmert tesmanufacture flat
panel displays, related equipment and system coergsnand contract research and development rdlatée development of electro-optical
devices and systems. Net revenues totaled $69li6mi$36.3 million and $33.8 million in 2004, 20@8d 2002, respectively.
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Equipment revenues totaled $60.5 million, $286illion and $27.1 million in 2004, 2003 and 20@2spectively. The increase in Equipment
revenues was the result of the sale of eleven 2@ Isystems and two MDP-250 systems and an incireaseenue from disk equipment
technology upgrades and spare parts. During 2083%0ld two disk sputtering systems and recognieednue on upgrades to five D-STAR®
systems that were originally delivered in 2001. isment revenues declined slightly between 20032002 as a result of the closure of the
fabrication center in 2002. Net revenues for 20@2ude $7.1 million of sales of rapid thermal pregiag equipment, a product line we sold in
November 2002. Our fabrication center, which maotufieed machined parts, contributed sales to outsideomers of $604,000 in 2002. T
fabrication center was closed in September 2002répkaced the fabrication center with a smaller ediatiop during 2003. The model shop
manufactures engineering prototypes and partsderimour products.

The magnetic disk manufacturing industry has consolidated into a small number of large maatuirers. We believe that the majority of
our active customers now utilize most of their edjysand that there is significant potential foesle customers to both resume adding capacity
and to upgrade the technical capability of thestalied base to permit production of high densisksl for perpendicular recording rather than
the current longitudinal technology. In the past faonths we have responded to requests for quaiesffve customers related to delivery of
the 200 Lean system. While there is no guarantgtiese customers will actually place orders &w disk sputtering systems, our outlook for
the Equipment business in 2005 is positive andxpe&t our revenues will grow relative to 2004.

Imaging revenues totaled $9.1 million, $9.8iom and $6.7 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002,pestively. The decrease in Imaging revel
was primarily the result of an increase in costrstiaevelopment programs, especially our militasgdimounted display development
activities. This reduced the revenue we could gaegrer employee in Imaging. Commercial sales @ifgimg products increased in the fourth
guarter, with NightVista and LIVAR cameras delivéite a total of 14 customers. In 2003, Imaging neses increased due primarily to an
increase in revenues from contract research anel@@went and, to a lesser extent, increased reVienmethe sale of prototype products. In
2005, we expect the Imaging business revenue @,gvith increases in both contract research aneldewment revenue and product revenue,
although we don’t anticipate our Imaging businegkhg profitable in 2005. Substantial growth irtdte Imaging revenues is dependent on
proliferation of our technology into major militasyeapons programs, the ability to obtain expo#griges for foreign customers, obtaining
production subcontracts for these programs andubeessful launch of our commercial products.

Our backlog of orders at December 31, 2004 $40.5 million, as compared to a December 31, 2@@Rlog of $43.3 million, and does not
include orders for new systems that we announcey i@e2005. As of March 21, 2005, we have annouhtew orders for nine 200 Lean
systems and four MDP-250B systems. The $10.5 millibbacklog at December 31, 2004 consisted of 88ln of Equipment backlog and
$4.9 million of Imaging backlog. The $43.3 milliofi backlog at December 31, 2003 consisted of $#0lon of Equipment backlog and
$2.8 million of Imaging backlog. The decrease inpment backlog was primarily the result of theagition for revenue of eleven Intevac
200 Lean disk sputtering systems that were in logcit December 31, 2003. Most of our backlog atelder 31, 2004 is scheduled for either
customer acceptance or delivery during 2005.

Significant portions of our revenues in arytgular period have been attributable to salesltmited number of customers. In 2004,
Seagate and equipment sales through Matsubo, pandse distributor, each accounted for more thé& dffour revenues, and in aggregate
accounted for 73% of revenues. In 2003, Komag, &eagiockheed Martin and equipment sales througtsiue, each accounted for more
than 10% of our revenues, and in aggregate accbfiot&6% of revenues. In 2002, Seagate, Toppaliythe U.S. Army Communications-
Electronics Command each accounted for more thé dfdour consolidated net revenues and in aggregateunted for 74% of consolidated
net revenues. Our largest customers tend to chfaoigeperiod to period.

International sales totaled $47.1 million3$2million and $17.5 million in 2004, 2003 and 20@espectively, accounting for 68%, 64%
52% of net revenues. International revenues inchrdducts shipped to overseas operations of UsSpaaies. The increase in international
sales in 2004 over 2003 was
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primarily due to an increase in net revenues frisk sputtering systems. The increase in internatieales in 2003 over 2002 was primarily
due to an increase in net revenues from disk sysfgmades and components. Substantially all ofrdarnational sales are to customers in the
Far East. Our mix of domestic versus internaticads will change from period to period dependinghe location of our largest customers in
each period.

Gross marginCost of net revenues consists primarily of purctiasaterials and costs attributable to contractaieteand development,
and also includes fabrication, assembly, test agthilation labor and overhead, customer-specifgireering costs, warranty costs, royalties,
provisions for inventory reserves and scrap. Gnagggin was 23%, 27% and 22% in 2004, 2003 and 2@8pectively.

Gross margin in Equipment was 25%, 27% arid 212004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 2004 Eqaeiptrgross margin was adversely
impacted by costs incurred during the rapid praduacinstallation and start-up of the initial pradion run of 200 Lean systems, and by costs
for scrap and rework and actual and expected obsatee, related primarily to design changes or20QrLean system. This was partially
offset by higher margins on revenue from disk emépt technology upgrades and spare parts. Equipgnes$ margin in 2003 improved over
2002 due primarily to a reduction in inventory pssens and improved absorption of manufacturingrogad due to an increase in
manufacturing volume late in the year. 2003 groasgin was negatively impacted by poor margins aadeon the five D-STAR deposition
system upgrades and the sale of a used disk spgt®stem at a reduced price. Equipment grossimar@002 was favorably impacted by
lower production costs and by a reduction in ineenprovisions, partially offset by the undaipsorption of manufacturing overhead due to
manufacturing volume. We expect the gross margithfe Equipment business to improve in 2005, priljas a result of cost reduction effc
undertaken on the 200 Lean system. However, wawadhigh cost 200 lean systems in inventory at yezat that were built during 2004 and
are not expected to achieve margins as high an#ngins expected on systems produced in 2005. @Grasgins in the Equipment business"
vary depending on a number of factors, includingdpict cost, system configuration and pricing, factdilization, and provisions for excess
and obsolete inventory.

Gross margin in Imaging was 9%, 26% and 142004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 2004 Imagieggmargin was impacted by our
military head mounted display development prograhe initial phase of this program was partiallyded by the US Government and our
NATO customer. The portion of this c-shared program being funded by Intevac is reparntewst of sales, and as a result, this programema
a negative contribution to gross profit in 2004alying gross margin improved in 2003 over 2002 dumdst of the revenue being derived fi
fully funded, rather than cost-shared, researchdavelopment contracts and from the sale of prp®pgroducts. We expect Imaging gross
margin to improve in 2005, relative to 2004, asdbst-sharing portion of the military head mountiézplay development program was largely
completed at the end of 2004, and revenue in 20DBevderived primarily from fully funded researehd development contracts and to a
lesser extent, from the sale of products.

Research and developmeResearch and development expense consists priroaphototype materials, salaries and related cofsts
employees engaged in ongoing research, designesrgdogphment activities for disk manufacturing equgnm flat panel manufacturing
equipment and Imaging products. Research and dawelot expense totaled $11.6 million, $12.0 millzow $10.8 million in 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively, representing 17%, 33% and 3RAebrevenue.

Research and development expenses declir@Dih due to a reduction in spending for Imagingdpcts and flat panel manufacturing
equipment, partially offset by increased spendorglie development of disk manufacturing equipnaertt the initiation of a project to develop
a new Equipment product line. The increase in mrebeand development expense in 2003 was primdrdyresult of higher spending for the
200 Lean disk sputtering system and for commeigiabing products, partially offset by decreasechdp®g for flat panel products. We expect
that research and development spending in 2005ngiltase over 2004 as a result of two project&duipment we are constructing the first
engineering prototype for our new product line #melcost of this prototype will be charged to reskeand development expense. In Imaging,
we have commissioned the design of a proprietary0SMensor for use in our military low light levelneeras.
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Research and development expenses do natlicbsts of $6.9 million, $6.0 million and $5.2limn in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectivi
related to contract research and development, wdrelincluded in cost of net revenues. Researcldanelopment expenses also do not
include costs of $248,000 and $309,000 incurredsiyn 2003 and 2002, respectively, and reimburseiguthe terms of research and
development cost sharing agreements related tdajewent of disk manufacturing equipment.

Selling, general and administrativBelling, general and administrative expense canpistnarily of selling, marketing, customer support
financial and management costs and also includegugtion of customer samples, travel, liabilityuirence, legal and professional services and
bad debt expense. Domestic sales and internataied of disk manufacturing products in Singapbl@aysia and Taiwan are made by our
direct sales force, whereas other internationassaf disk manufacturing and other products areentgddistributors and representatives that
provide services such as sales, installation, w&rrand customer support. We also have a subsidig@yngapore to support customers in
Southeast Asia.

Selling, general and administrative expeonsaléd $9.5 million, $8.4 million and $7.8 milliam 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively,
representing 14%, 23% and 23% of net revenue. idredse in 2004 was primarily the result of incesaa marketing and business
development headcount and Sarbanes-Oxley completiéties, partially offset by a reduction of plus facility costs being recorded in
selling, general and administrative expense. Theease in 2003 over 2002 was primarily the resuitlol million of surplus facility costs
being recorded in selling, general and administeatixpense, partially offset by a reduction in espntative commissions paid. We expect that
selling, general and administrative expenses wiltéase in 2005 over the amount spent in 2004 doaply to a projected increase in field
offices, headcount, travel, Sarbanes-Oxley compéactivities and employee benefit costs.

Interest expensénterest expense consists primarily of interesbonconvertible notes and amortization of debtasse costs. Interest
expense totaled $55,000, $1.8 million and $3.0ionlin 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The desgén interest expense in 2004 was due
to the elimination of our convertible notes outsliag as a result of the automatic conversion ofcmnvertible notes due 2009 notes in the
fourth quarter of 2003 and the repayment of theaiaing $1.0 million of our convertible notes dued2dn March 2004. The decrease in
interest expense in 2003 was due to a reductitimeirconvertible notes outstanding, as a resulbdf the exchange offer completed in 2002
the conversion of our 2009 notes. We expect ogrést expense to be insignificant in 2005.

Interest income and other, nétterest income and other, net totaled $1.1 miJlh77,000 and $16.5 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002
respectively. Interest income and other, net ind2@hsisted of $390,000 of dividends from 601 @afifa Avenue LLC, $634,000 of interest
income on investments and $46,000 of early paymiscbunts and other income. Interest income anerpttet in 2003 consisted of $390,000
of dividends from 601 California Avenue LLC, a $2800 gain on the sale of the rapid thermal proogssioduct line, $269,000 of interest
income on investments and $72,000 of early paymisobunts and other income, partially offset by 1880 of expense related to the
disposition of fixed assets. Interest income amgigtnet in 2002 consisted of $284,000 of interesime on investments, a $15.4 million gain
on the sale of the rapid thermal processing profiluet a $324,000 gain on the sale of fixed as§330,000 of dividends from 601 California
Avenue LLC and $26,000 of early payment discounts@her income. We expect interest income andrptted to increase in 2005 due
primarily to higher interest rates realized on imwestments.

Provision for (benefit from) income taxéis.2004, we recorded income tax expense of $1100@8 primarily to the recording of $115,000
of expense as a result of a claim we received ftwrCalifornia Franchise Tax Board for a portionmmome tax credits we claimed in prior
years, partially offset by a net credit for taxeged by our Singapore subsidiary. Our net deferagdhsset totaled zero at December 31, 2
net of a $19.9 million valuation allowance. We haubstantial net operating loss cafoywards which can be used to limit the taxes fpaidhe
future and to reduce our effective tax rate to thas the statutory income tax rates in effect.
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In 2003, we recorded income tax expense 8fGE®, due primarily to foreign tax expense on inecearned by our Singapore subsidiary.
Our net deferred tax asset totaled zero at DeceBhe2003, net of a $16.7 million valuation allowan

In 2002, we recorded an income tax benef@®6 million. This resulted from the enactmenttaf Job Creation and Worker Assistance Act
of 2002 which increased the length of time, frono tyears to five years, over which losses incurme?id01 and 2002 could be carried back
against taxes paid in prior years. We paid fedeame taxes of approximately $5.2 million for 19$6.9 million for 1997 and $0.5 million
for 1998. Our federal tax returns, and any refurdsilting from them, are subject to audit for thyears from the date filed. Our net deferred
tax asset totaled zero at December 31, 2002, reef@P.1 million valuation allowance.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our operating activities in 2004 used cas#i®fl million. The cash used was primarily the lestithe net loss incurred, an increase in
inventory and a decrease in customer advanceslpadffset by a decrease in accounts receivabtelzy depreciation. Operating activities
used cash of $10.3 million in 2003. The cash usas pvimarily the result of the net loss incurred an increase in accounts receivable,
partially offset by an increase in customer advanaalecrease in inventory and by depreciationradipg activities provided cash of $820,000
in 2002. The cash provided was primarily a restithe refund of federal income taxes paid in pyiears, decreases in accounts receivable and
inventory, depreciation and amortization, partiaffset by the operating loss.

Our investing activities in 2004 used casB®4.5 million as the result of the purchase oestments and fixed assets. Investing activiti
2003 used cash of $1.9 million as the result ofpilnehase of fixed assets, which was partiallyetftsy additional proceeds from the sale of the
rapid thermal processing product line. Investintivétees in 2002 provided cash of $16.8 millionasesult of the sale of the rapid thermal
processing product line and the sale of equipnvelmch was partially offset by the purchase of fiassets.

Our financing activities provided cash of $thillion in 2004 due to a public offering of ocwmmon stock and the sale of our common
stock through our employee benefit plans, partiaffget by the repayment of the remaining $1.0ionllof our convertible notes due 2004.
Financing activities provided cash of $3.2 millior2003 due primarily to the sale of Intevac comrstotk to our employees through our
employee benefit plans. Financing activities useghmf $7.4 million in 2002, primarily as a resafithe exchange of most of our convertible
notes due 2004 for new convertible notes due 2@d%ash. On July 12, 2002 we completed the exchah$86.3 million in aggregate
principal amount of our convertible notes due 26%4529.5 million of our new 6/ 2% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2009 and
$7.6 million in cash, including $0.9 million for ertied interest. Sales of Intevac common stock teemployees through our employee benefit
plans provided cash of $0.3 million in 2002.

At December 31, 2004, we had $17.5 millioragh and cash equivalents and $24.6 million oftdkom investments. We intend to
undertake approximately $5.0 million in capital ergitures during the next 12 months, and we belieweexisting cash, cash equivalent and
short-term investment balances will be sufficientrteet our cash requirements for the next twelveths

We have incurred operating losses each yree 4998 and cannot predict with certainty whenwilereturn to operating profitability. We
believe an upturn in demand for the type of diskuafacturing equipment we produce is occurring, @edcexpect our Equipment business tc
profitable in 2005. We also expect to continuegdrbthe investment mode in Imaging during 200% vinth lower losses than in 2004.
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Contractual Obligations

In the normal course of business, we entervarious contractual obligations that will betkset in cash. These obligations consist prime
of operating lease and purchase obligations. Theagd future cash flows required to meet thesigatdns as of December 31, 2004 are
shown in the table below. More information on tipeating lease obligations is available in Paritéim 8, “Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data.”

Payments Due by Perioc

Total <1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years >5 Years
(In thousands)
Operating lease obligatiol $16,45¢ $ 3,38 $ 5,527 $ 3,28t $ 4,257
Purchase obligatior 2,14 2,14 — — —
Total $18,60: $ 5,53( $ 5,527 $ 3,28t $ 4,257

ltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MarkRisk

Interest rate riskOur exposure to market risk for changes in interasts relates primarily to our investment portiolive do not use
derivative financial instruments in our investmpottfolio. We place our investments with high gtyatiredit issuers and, by policy, limit the
amount of credit exposure to any one issuer. Skont-investments typically consist of investment&\AA rated commercial paper and debt
instruments issued by the US government and its@ge.

The table below presents principal amountsratated weighted-average interest rates by yieawaturity for our investment portfolio at
December 31, 2004.

2005 2006 2007  Beyonc Total Fair Value
Cash equivalent
Fixed rate amount $ 9,98( — — — $ 9,98« $ 9,97¢
Weightec-average rat 2.1%
Variable rate amoun $ 5,941 $ 5,941 $ 5,941
Weightec-average rat 1.9€% — — —
Shor-term investment
Fixed rate amount $ 24,57¢ — — — $ 24,57¢ $ 24,49;
Weightec-average rat 1.87% — — —
Long-term investment
Fixed rate amount — $ 8,05z — — $ 8,052 $ 7,95¢
Weighted average ra — 2.1% — —
Total investment portfolit $ 40,50( $ 8,052 — — $ 48,55: $ 48,36¢

Foreign exchange rislErom time to time, we enter into foreign currenopard exchange contracts to economically hedgricenf our
anticipated foreign currency transaction, trangtaind remeasurement exposures. The objective of theseamsiis to minimize the impact
foreign currency exchange rate movements on ouiatipg results. At December 31, 2004, we had neidor currency forward exchange
contracts.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Intevac, Inc.

We have audited the consolidated balancesloééntevac, Inc. as of December 31, 2004 an@280d the related consolidated statements
of operations and comprehensive income (loss) gbladders’ equity and cash flows for each of theehyears in the period ended
December 31, 2004. These financial statementhareesponsibility of management. Our responsibiditio express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance wighstiandards of the Public Company Accounting OghatdBoard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatements. An audit includes examining, orsaliasis, evidence supporting the amounts andodiseds in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesiused and significant estimates made by maragels well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thatodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statements nefd to above present fairly, in all material regpethe consolidated financial position of Inte
Inc. at December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the catadeli results of its operations and its consolitlatesh flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2004, in conformitly accounting principles generally accepted inlimted States of America.

Also, in our opinion, the data in the relafedncial statement schedule, when consideredlation to the basic financial statements taken
as a whole, presents fairly in all material respdieé information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance withsthrdards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdgiard (United States), the
effectiveness of Intevac, Inc.’s internal contreéofinancial reporting as of December 31, 2004gkaon criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Conmaibf Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway @@sion and our report dated
March 22, 2005 expressed an unqualified opiniomanagement’s assessment, and an adverse opintbe effective operation, of internal
control over financial reporting.

/s/ Grant Thornton LLI

San Jose, California
March 22, 2005
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INTEVAC, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivale! $
Shor-term investment
Trade and other accounts receivable, net of allogsif $217 and $22 at December 31, 2004 and
2003
Inventories, including $6,255 and $5,431 held st@mer locations at December 31, 2004 and .
Prepaid expenses and other current a:

Total current asse

Property, plant and equipment, at ct
Leasehold improvemen
Machinery and equipme

Less accumulated depreciation and amortize

Long-term investment
Investment in 601 California Avenue LL
Other long term asse

Total asset $

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER 'S EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Convertible note $
Accounts payabl
Accrued payroll and related liabiliti¢
Other accrued liabilitie
Customer advance

Total current liabilities
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Commitments
Shareholder equity:
Undesignated preferred stock, no par value, 10sb@@es authorized, no shares issued and
outstanding
Common stock, no par valu
Authorized share— 50,000
Issued and outstanding sha— 20,182 and 16,953 at December 31, 2004 and :
respectively
Accumulated other comprehensive inca
Accumulated defici

Total shareholde’ equity

Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity $

See accompanying notes.
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2004 2003
(In thousands)
17,45¢ $ 19,507
24,57¢ —
4,77¢ 14,01¢
15,37¢ 13,10¢
95€ 1,113
63,14( 47,74¢
6,654 6,22¢
18,21¢ 16,52¢
24,87( 22,75¢
18,87 16,95¢
5,99¢ 5,79¢
8,052 —
2,431 2,431
3 4
79,62: $ 55,97t
— $ 1,02¢
1,641 3,39¢
1,61% 1,61(
2,94: 2,64:
3,83: 16,43
10,04( 25,10¢
207 —
94,80: 51,98:
253 22%
(25,68() (21,336)
69,37¢ 30,86¢
79,62: $ 55,97t
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INTEVAC, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND

Net revenues
Systems and componel
Technology developmel
Total net revenue
Cost of net revenue
Systems and componel
Technology developmel
Inventory provision:
Total cost of net revenui
Gross profil
Operating expense
Research and developme
Selling, general and administrati
Total operating expens:
Operating los:
Interest expens
Interest incomt
Other income and expense,
Income (loss) before income tax
Provision for (benefit from) income tax
Net income (loss
Other comprehensive inconr
Foreign currency translation adjustme
Total adjustment
Total comprehensive income (lo¢

Basic income (loss) per sha
Net income (loss
Shares used in per share amol
Diluted income (loss) per shal
Net income (loss
Shares used in per share amol

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

See accompanying notes.
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Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003
(In thousands, except
per share amounts)

$ 61,32¢ $ 27,73¢
8,28¢ 8,55¢
69,61" 36,29
45,52¢ 19,68¢
6,85¢ 6,03z
1,37¢ 7432
53,75¢ 26,46¢
15,85¢ 9,83(
11,58( 12,03
9,52¢ 8,44¢
21,10t 20,48¢
(5,249 (10,655
(55) (1,787
634 26¢
43¢ (92)
(4,239 (12,26Y
11C 38
$ (4349 $ (12,309
3C 34
3C 34
$ (4319 $ (12,269
$ (029 $ (099
19,74¢ 12,94¢
$ (0.22) $ (0.95)
19,74¢ 12,94¢

2002

$ 27,62¢
6,15¢
33,78¢

20,00¢
5,15(C
1,31¢
26,47¢
7,30¢

10,84¢
7,752
18,59¢
(11,289
(2,989

284

16,16¢
2,18:
(6,597

$ 877«

67
67
$ 8,841

12,07%

$ 0.6€
15,26:
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INTEVAC, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balance at December 31, 2C
Shares issued in connection wi
Exercise of stock optior
Employee stock purchase pl
Compensation expense in the form of stock opt
Foreign currency translation adjustm
Net income
Balance at December 31, 2C
Shares issued in connection wi
Exercise of stock optior
Employee stock purchase pl
Conversion of convertible notes due 2(
Compensation expense in the form of stock opt
Foreign currency translation adjustm
Net loss
Balance at December 31, 2C
Shares issued in connection wi
Exercise of stock optior
Employee stock purchase pl
Secondary public offerin
Foreign currency translation adjustm
Net loss

Balance at December 31, 2C

Accumulated

(In thousands)

Common Stock Other
Comprehensive

Shares Amount Income
12,00¢ $ 19,09: % 122
13 19 —
10¢ 27z —
— 4 —
— — 67
12,12t $ 19,38¢ % 18¢
53C 2,98¢ —
78 20C —
4,22( 29,37¢ —
— 30 .
— — 34
16,95: $51,98. $ 222
17¢ 85€ —
82 402 —
2,96¢ 41,56 —
— — 30
20,18: $ 94,80: $ 258

See accompanying notes.
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Retained
Earnings Total
(Accum. Shareholder¢
Deficit) Equity
$ (17,80) 1,40¢
— 19
— 273
— 4
— 67
8,774 8,774
$ (9,039 10,54¢
— 2,98¢
— 20C
— 29,37t
— 30
— 34
(12,309 (12,309
$ (21,330 30,86¢
— 85¢€
— 402
— 41,56
— 30
(4,344) (4,344
$ (25,680 69,37t
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INTEVAC, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)

Operating activities
Net income (loss $ (434) $ (12309 % 8,774
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to mshcand cash equivalents providec

(used in) operating activitie

Depreciatior 2,031 1,96: 2,57
Amortization of debt offering cos 1 87 672
Net amortization (accretion) of investment premitand discount 233 — —
Inventory provision: 1,37¢ 745 1,31¢
Gain on sale of Rapid Thermal Processing produoet — (287) (15,429
Gain on sale of equipme — — (3249
Gain on purchase of convertible no — — (23
Compensation expense in the form of common s — 30
Loss on disposal of equipme 86 841 13
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Accounts receivabl 9,261 (8,809 2,26¢
Inventory (4,309 2,02¢ 3,35¢
Prepaid expenses and other as 161 (152 (492)
Accounts payabl (1,749 1,657 (890)
Accrued payroll and other accrued liabilit 44¢ (52¢€) 11¢€
Customer advance (12,599 4,47: (1,120
Total adjustment (5,060 2,05: (7,959
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by (useacb@jating activitie: (9,409 (10,250 82C
Investing activities
Purchase of investmer (45,869 — —
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investrr 13,00( — —
Net proceeds from sale of Rapid Thermal Procegsiaduct line — 287 17,78(
Proceeds from sale of equipmi 10 7 53¢
Purchase of equipme (1,620 (2,199 (1,480
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by (useidveyting activities (34,479 (1,905 16,83t
Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of common si 42,82( 3,18¢ 29z
Payoff of convertible notes due 20 (1,025 — —
Repurchase of Intevac convertible nc — — (225)
Exchange of Intevac convertible notes due 2 — — (7,487)
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by (usefthisw)cing activities 41,79t 3,18¢ (7,416
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 31 17 61
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (2,052) (8,950 10,30(
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe 19,50% 28,451 18,15}
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 17,45t $ 19,50% $ 28,45
Cash paid (received) fo
Interest $ 33 $ 1,987 $ 2,45¢
Income taxe: 2 2 2
Income tax refun — (2149 (6,369
Other nor-cash change:
Inventories transferred to (from) property, plantl@quipmen $ 70€ $ — $ (514)

Exchange of $36.3M of convertible notes due 200489.5M of convertible notes 20!
(exchange completed July 20( — —
Conversion of convertible notes due 2009 into comistock — 29,37t —

See accompanying notes.
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INTEVAC, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Business and Nature of Operation:

We are the world’s leading provider of diglutering equipment to manufacturers of magnetidienased in hard disk drives and a
developer and provider of leading technology faremxe low light imaging sensors, cameras and systéve operate two businesses:
Equipment and Imaging.

Our Equipment business designs, manufactoragkets and services complex capital equipmert usthe sputtering, or deposition, of
highly engineered thin-films of material onto matioeisks which are used in hard disk drives. Hdisk drives are the primary storage
medium for digital data and function by storingadah magnetic disks. These disks are createdaplEisticated manufacturing process
involving a variety of many steps, including platimnnealing, polishing, texturing, sputtering &uatication.

Our Imaging business develops and manufex®leetro-optical sensors, cameras, and systermnpehait highly sensitive detection of
photons in the visible and near infrared portiohthe spectrum, allowing vision in extreme low ligtituations.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentatiol

The consolidated financial statements incliideaccounts of Intevac and its wholly owned dlibsies. All inter-company transactions and
balances have been eliminated.

Revenue Recognitio

We recognize revenue using guidance from SEff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, “Revenue Recdgm.” Our policy allows revenue
recognition when persuasive evidence of an arrapgeexists, delivery has occurred or services th@en rendered, the price is fixed or
determinable, and collectibility is reasonably asduOn January 1, 2003, we changed our revenogmémn policy for system orders recei
after December 31, 2002.

System Revenue Recognition for Orders Receiveddtember 31, 200Zertain of our system sales with customer acceptanavision:
are accounted for as multiple-element arrangem#dme have previously met defined customer acaeggdevels with the specific type of
system, then we recognize revenue for the fair atarllue of the system upon shipment and tran$féttey and recognize revenue for the fair
market value of installation and acceptance sesvidgen those services are completed. For systeahbdlie generally not been demonstrated
to meet product specifications prior to shipmeetenue recognition is usually deferred until custoacceptance. In the event that our
customer chooses not to complete installation asd@ance, and our obligations under the conteactinplete installation, acceptance or any
other tasks, with the exception of warranty obligas, have been fully discharged, then we recogaigeremaining revenue to the extent that
collectibility under the contract is reasonably.aesl.

The revenue recognition policy outlined abawnd implemented for system orders received afemeinber 31, 2002 was adopted to better
conform our revenue recognition policies to indystccounting practice for companies selling siméiguipment. The effect of adopting this
policy in years prior to 2003 would have been narge in 2002 revenues. The effect on net inconss)lof adopting this policy in years prior
to 2003 would have been no effect on 2002 net irecarhe adoption of this policy had no effect oneraves or net loss in 2003.

System Revenue Recognition for Orders ReceivedeBeémember 31, 200Revenues for systems that were ordered prior teDber 31,
2002 are recognized upon customer acceptance. &oiony and flat panel systems shipped through &lalisbr, revenue is typically
recognized after the distributor has acceptedyhtem at our factory and the system has been sthifsjme memory and flat panel systems sold
directly to end customers, revenue is recognizeat afstallation and acceptance of the systemeattistomer site.
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INTEVAC, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

When we believe that there may be higher than nlbem@user installation and acceptance issues/ftems shipped through a distributor,
such as when the first unit of a newly designedesyss delivered, we defer revenue recognitionl tiné distributor’s customer has also
accepted the system.

Accounting Treatment for Systerfer periods both before and after December 31, 2@@ng the period that a system is undergoing
customer acceptance (either distributor or end)uter value of the system remains in inventoryl any payments received, or amounts
invoiced, related to the system are included inamser advances. When revenue is recognized orygters, the inventory is charged to cost of
net revenues, the customer advance is liquidatetitree customer is billed for the unpaid balancthefsystem revenue.

In some instances, hardware that is not ¢issémthe functioning of the system may be dakdkafter acceptance of the system. In these
cases, we estimate the fair market value of theassential hardware as if it had been sold onradstbbne basis, and defer recognizing reve
on that value until the hardware is delivered.

Occasionally, we are asked by our custontedelay delivery of products that they have acatmed to temporarily hold the product at
facility. To determine revenue recognition when pheduct is not immediately shipped to the custgmerapply the criteria outlined in the
SEC Enforcement Release No. 108, which is condistiéh APB Statement 4, paragraph 150. All of thigecia must be met in order for
revenue to be recognized.

Other Systems and Non-System Revenue RecogRiteenues for systems without installation and atecee provisions, as well as
revenues from technology upgrades, spare partsuatables and prototype products built by the Imabnsiness are recognized when title
passes to our customer. Service and maintenantecbrevenue, which to date has been insignifidarecognized ratably over applicable
contract periods or as the service is performed.

Obligations After Shipmen®ur shipping terms are generally FOB shipping pdint in some cases are FOB destination. For systehd
directly to the end user, our obligations remairaftgr shipment typically include installation, emser factory acceptance and warranty. For
systems sold to distributors, typically the digttilr assumes responsibility for installation and aser customer acceptance. In some cases, th
distributor will assume some or all of the warraliility. For products other than systems andesysupgrades, warranty is the only
obligation we have after shipment.

Technology Development Revenue RecognitMmperform research and development work undeowarjovernment-sponsored research
contracts. Generally these contracts are bestteffost-plus-fixed-fee (“CPFF”) contracts or firirefd-price (“FFP”) contracts. On best efforts
CPFF contracts we typically commit to perform cert@search and development efforts up to an aggped amount. In connection with these
contracts, we receive funding on an incrementakhgs to a ceiling. On FFP contracts we typicatiynenit to perform certain development and
production efforts for a fixed price.

Our CPFF contracts are accounted for undeB AR. 43, Chapter 11, Section A, which addressedt-@lus-Fixed-Fee Contracts. The
contracts are all cost-type, with financial termattare a mixture of fixed fee, no fee and costisjaRevenue on these contracts is recognized
in accordance with contract terms, typically agsase incurred. In the event that total cost irediunder a particular contract over-runs its
agreed upon amount, we may be liable for the amiditicosts.

Our FFP contracts are accounted for under &OP “Accounting for Performance of Constructiopp€& and Certain Production-Type
Contracts.” Revenue on FFP contracts is generatlggnized on the percentage-of-completion metheddan costs incurred in relation to the
total estimated costs. Provisions for estimateddse®n FFP research contracts are recorded iretfagpn which such losses are determined.
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The deliverables under each CPFF or FFP acintange from providing reports to providing haadev In the majority of the contracts there
is no obligation for either party to continue thregram once the funds have been expended. Theésefimn be terminated at any time for
convenience, in which case we would be reimbureeddr actual incurred costs, plus fee, if applieafor the completed effort. We own the
entire right, title and interest to each inventébscovered under the contract, unless we spedifigale up that right. The U.S. Government has
a paid-up license to use any invention/intellecfiraberty developed under government funded catstfac government purposes only. In
addition, we have, from time to time, negotiatethvihird parties to fund a portion of our costseturn for granting them a joint interest in the
technology rights developed pursuant to the contrac

Trade Receivables and Doubtful Accour

We evaluate the collectibility of trade re@dles on an ongoing basis and provide reservessigmtential losses when appropriate.
Management analyzes historical bad debts, custoomerentrations, customer credit worthiness, chaimgegstomer payment tendencies and
current economic trends when evaluating the adggofihe allowance for doubtful accounts. Custoemrounts are written off against the
allowance when the amount is deemed uncollectible.

Included in trade receivables are unbillezbieables related to government contracts of $@bahd $1,065,000 at December 31, 2004
December 31, 2003, respectively.

Warranty

Our typical warranty is 12 months from cuséwracceptance. We also sell extended warrantiesnole}2 months to some customers. The
warranty period on used systems is generally shtitéen 12 months. During this warranty period aafedtive non-consumable parts are
replaced and installed at no charge to the custohter warranty period on consumable parts is lidhitetheir reasonable usable life. A
provision for the estimated warranty cost is reedrdt the time revenue is recognized.

On the consolidated balance sheet, the s@ort-portion of the of the warranty provision isluded in Other Accrued Liabilities, while the
long-term portion is included in Other Long-Ternahilities.

The following table displays the activitytimee warranty provision account for 2004 and 2003:

2004 2003

(In thousands)
Beginning balanc $ 534 $ 84t
Expenditures incurred under warrant (1,024 (909)
Accruals for product warranties issued during #gorting perioc 1,99/ 474
Adjustments to previously existing warranty accst (389 124
Ending balanc $ 1,11¢ $ 534

The following table displays the balance sludgessification of the warranty provision accoahDecember 31, 2004 and 2003:

December 31,

2004 2003

(In thousands)
Other accrued liabilitie $ 90¢ $ 534
Other lon¢-term liabilities 207 —
Total warranty provisiol $ 1,11¢ $ 534
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Guarantees

We have entered into agreements with custeiaued suppliers that include limited intellectuadgerty indemnification obligations that are
customary in the industry. These guarantees géyneegjuire us to compensate the other party folagedamages and costs incurred as a result
of third party intellectual property claims arisifigm these transactions. The nature of the intaled property indemnification obligations
prevents us from making a reasonable estimateeofidiximum potential amount we could be requiregplaty our customers and suppliers.
Historically, we have not made any significant inohéfication payments under such agreements andnomuiat has been accrued in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements meiipect to these indemnification obligations.

International Distribution Costs

We make payments to agents and represergatider agreements related to international salestiirn for obtaining orders and providing
installation and warranty services. These paymendgients and representatives are included imgellieneral and administrative expenses.
These amounts totaled approximately $0, $119,08(5800,000 for the years ended December 31, 2@DB 2nd 2002, respectively.

Customer Advance

Customer advances generally represent namgtehle deposits invoiced by the Company in conaratiith receiving customer purchase
orders and other events preceding acceptance tefinsgsCustomer advances related to products thatia been shipped to customers and
included in accounts receivable were $16,000 and ®dlion at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respeltiv

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Sh-term Investment:

Our investment portfolio consists of caslghcaquivalents and investments in debt securMiessconsider all highly liquid investments w
a maturity of three months or less when purchasédxtcash equivalents. Investments in debt seesidtinsist principally of highly rated debt
instruments with maturities generally between amé 26 months.

In accordance with Statement of Financialdoting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 113¢&counting for Certain Investments in Debt and Bg
Securities,” and based on our intentions regartliege instruments, we have classified our investsriardebt securities as held-to-maturity
and account for these investments at amortized kustest income is recorded using an effectivergst rate, with the associated premium or
discount amortized to interest income. The tableveg@resents the amortized principal amount, msgmurity type and maturities for our
investments in debt securities.

December 31, December 31,
2004 2003

(In thousands)

Amortized Principal Amount

Debt securities issued by US government aget $ 28,01% $ —
Corporate debt securiti 4,61¢ —
Total investments in debt securiti $ 32,63 $ —
Shor-term investment $ 24,57¢ $ —
Long-term investment 8,052 —
Total investments in debt securiti $ 32,63 $ —
Approximate fair value of investments in debt sé@s $ 32,45( $ —
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Cash and cash equivalents represent cashrascand money market funds. Included in accouayalple is $188,000 and $635,000 of b
overdraft at December 31, 2004 and December 313,2@8pectively.
Valuation of Lonc-lived and Intangible Asset

We assess the impairment of identifiablerigthles and long-lived assets whenever eventsamggs in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable. Factorsavisider important which could trigger an impairmentiew include the following:

« significant underperformance relative to expectistbhical or projected future operating resu
« significant changes in the manner of our use obttwired assets or the strategy for our overalinass; an
« significant negative industry or economic trer

When we determine that the carrying valubog-lived assets, intangibles or goodwill may hetrecoverable based upon the existence of
one or more of the above indicators of impairmesg,measure any impairment based on a projectedutised cash flow method using a
discount rate determined by our management to beremsurate with the risk inherent in our currerdibeiss model.

Prototype Cost
Prototype product costs that are not paidifater research and development contracts and asecess of fair market value are charged to
research and development expense.

Foreign Exchange Contract:

We may enter into foreign currency forwarg@heange contracts to hedge certain of our foreigreogy transaction, translation and re-
measurement exposures. Our accounting policiesoime of these instruments are based on our delsigrdtsuch instruments as hedging
transactions. Instruments not designated as a healggaction will be “marked to market” at the efccach accounting period. The criteria we
use for designating an instrument as a hedge inatfgctiveness in exposure reduction and one-traatching of the derivative financial
instrument to the underlying transaction being leeld@sains and losses on foreign currency forwaoth@xge contracts that are designated and
effective as hedges of existing transactions aregmized in income in the same period as lossegaind on the underlying transactions are
recognized and generally offset.

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, Intevacrtwafibreign currency forward exchange contractstaading.

Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of the short-term finahaistruments (cash and cash equivalents, shortitesestments, accounts receivable and
certain other liabilities) approximates fair vallige to the short-term maturity of those instruments
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Inventories

Inventories are priced using standard cegti;h approximates cost under the first-in, first-method, and are stated at the lower of cost ol
market. Inventories consist of the following:

December 31

2004 2003

(In thousands)
Raw materials $ 5,62 $ 3,30¢
Work-in-progress 3,49¢ 4,371
Finished good 6,258 5,431

Finished goods inventory consists primarfig@mpleted systems at customer sites that arergaiig installation and acceptance testing.

Inventory reserves included in the above nemafwere $9.9 and $10.2 million at December 3142061 December 31, 2003, respectively.
Each quarter, we analyze our inventory (raw matengork-inprogress and finished goods) against the fore@amtdd for the next 12 mont
Raw materials with no forecast requirements in featod are considered excess and inventory pandsire established to write those items
down to zero net book value. Work-in-progress andlied goods inventories with no forecast requéets in that period are typically written
down to the lower of cost or market. During thisgess, some inventory is identified as having noréuuse or value to us and is disposed of
against the reserves.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, 8illbn was added to inventory reserves basecherquarterly analyses and $1.6 million of
inventory was disposed of and charged to the resénsystem in inventory with a value of $706,008t of a $250,000 reserve, was transfe
to fixed assets and capitalized.

During the year ended December 31, 2003, $D83vas added to inventory reserves based onuteegly analyses and $698,000 of
inventory was disposed of and charged to the resémventory reserves increased by an addition@8®®0 due primarily to reserves charged
against research and development for prototypesysbuilt in inventory.

Property, Plant and Equipmer

Equipment and leasehold improvements aréechat cost less accumulated depreciation and &atan. Gains and losses on dispositions
are reflected in the Consolidated Statements of&@joas and Comprehensive Income (Loss).

Depreciation for machinery and equipmenbisiputed using the straight-line method over thineged useful lives of the assets.
Amortization of leasehold improvements is compuisihg the shorter of the remaining terms of thedear the estimated economic useful |
of the improvements.

Intangible Asset:

When amortizable intangibles exist, we amerthem on a straight-line basis over their estihatseful lives, which range from two to
seven years. At December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2@02 there no intangible assets reported on our tidased balance sheet, or amortized to
expense during the years then ended.

Comprehensive Incom

SFAS No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Incbraquires unrealized gains or losses on foreigmnericy translation adjustments, which
prior to the adoption were reported separatehharsholders’ equity,
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to be included in other comprehensive income. ABafember 31, 2004, the $253,000 balance of acaiatlbther comprehensive income is
comprised entirely of accumulated foreign curremapslation adjustments.

Employee Stock Plan

At December 31, 2004, we had two stock-b@seployee compensation plans, which are described fatly in Note 10. We account for
those plans under the recognition and measuremiecigdes of APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for@&k Issued to Employeesind relatec
Interpretations. No stock-based employee compensatst is reflected in net income, as all optigrented under those plans had an exercise
price equal to the market value of the underlyiopmmon stock on the date of grant. We plan to atlapfair value requirements of
SFAS No. 123R beginning in the three-month periodieel October 1, 2005.

Pro forma information regarding net inconesgl) and earnings (loss) per share is required#s3No. 123, which also requires that the
information be determined as if we had accounted@o employee stock options granted subsequddet@mber 31, 1994 under the fair value
method of this Statement. The fair value for thesons was estimated at the date of grant usBlzek-Scholes multiple option pricing moc
with the following weighted average assumptions20@4, 2003 and 2002, respectively: risk-free egerates of 3.60%, 1.62% and 1.64%;
dividend yields of 0.0%, 0.0% and 0.0%; volatilictors of the expected market price of Intevacimon stock of 0.946, 0.943 and 0.933;
and a weighted-average expected life of the ofdh 60, 2.22 and 2.68 years.

The Black-Scholes option valuation model wegeloped for use in estimating the fair valuerafiéd options that have no vesting
restrictions and are fully transferable. In additioption models require the input of highly subijezassumptions including the expected stock
price volatility. Because our employee stock opibave characteristics significantly different frédmose of traded options, and because
changes in the subjective assumptions can mateati#éct the fair value estimate, in managemenpision, the existing models do not
necessarily provide a reliable single measure efélr value of its employee stock options.

Under the 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Ri@n'ESPP”), we are authorized to issue up to 3Bshares of common stock to
participating employees. Under the terms of the ES&nployees can choose to have up to 10% ofdheinal base earnings withheld to
purchase Intevac’'s common stock. The purchase pfittee stock is 85% of the lower of the subscaptdate fair market value or the purchase
date fair market value. Under the ESPP, we solti&8R,77,749 and 108,020 shares to employees in, 2008 and 2002, respectively. As of
December 31, 2004, 276,013 shares remained restnvisguance under the ESPP. We do not recogoizgensation cost related to emplc
purchase rights under the plan. To comply withgheforma reporting requirements of SFAS No. 128npensation cost is estimated for the
fair value of the employees’ purchase rights usirgBlack-Scholes model with the following assurmps for those rights granted in 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively: risk-free interestgaif 2.37%, 1.43% and 1.12% dividend yield of Q.0%% and 0.0%; expected volatility of
0.952, 0.940 and 0.933; and an expected life &f,2D0 and 1.50 (the offering period ends July2RBD6 for the subscription period that began
in August 2004). The weighted average fair valuthobe purchase rights granted in 2004, 2003 afd @@re $2.95, $5.24 and $2.47,
respectively per share.
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The following table illustrates the effect met income (loss) and earnings (loss) per shawe ifiad applied the fair value-recognition
provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stocld®d Compensation”, to stock-based employee corapens

2004 2003 2002

(In thousands, except
per share data)

Net income (loss), as report $ (4,349 $ (12,309 $ 8,77¢
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensatioaresgpdetermined under fair value based

method for all awards, net of related tax effe (1,37¢) (683) (157
Pro forma net income (los $ (5.72) $ (12,980 $ 8,617

Earnings per shar
Basic— as reportel
Basic— pro forma
Diluted — as reporte:
Diluted — pro forma

022 $  (0.99 $ 077
029 $ (100 $ 0.71
022 $  (0.99 $ 0.6¢
029 $ (100 $ 0.6F

B H BB

Financial Presentation

Certain prior year amounts in the Consolidd&@mancial Statements have been reclassifiedrifoom to 2004 presentation.

Net income (loss) per shal

The following table sets forth the computataf basic and diluted loss per share:

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)
Numerator:
Numerator for basic income (loss) per sk— income (loss) available to common
stockholders $ (4,349 $ (12,309 $ 8,77¢
Effect of dilutive securities
6 1/ 2% convertible notes(1 — — 1,33¢
Numerator for diluted earnings (loss) per st— income (loss) available to common
stockholders after assumed conversi $ (4,349 $ (12,309 $ 10,11
Denominator
Denominator for basic earnings (loss) per s— weightec-average share 19,74¢ 12,94¢ 12,07%
Effect of dilutive securities
Employee stock options(. — — 137
61/ 2% convertible notes(? — — 3,04¢
Dilutive potential common shar: — — 3,18¢
Denominator for diluted earnings (loss) per st— adjusted weighte-average share
and assumed conversic 19,74¢ 12,94¢ 15,26:

(1) Diluted EPS for the twelve-month periods enBetember 31, 2004 and 2003 excludes “as conveittedtment of the convertible notes,
as their inclusion would be anti-dilutive. The nwenlof “as converted” shares excluded from the teghonth periods ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003 v
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8,568 and 3,619,134, respectively. $29.4 milliothaf notes were converted in the fourth quart&083 and the $1.0 million balance of
the notes was repaid in March 20

(2) Potentially dilutive securities, consisting of skaissuable upon exercise of employee stock optamasexcluded from the calculation
diluted EPS as their effect would be anti-dilutitée weighted average number of employee stockeptxcluded from the twelve-
month periods ended December 31, 2004, 2003 anz2\#88 1,605,593, 1,731,305 and 1,328,278, resphgt

Use of Estimate:

The preparation of financial statements infoomity with accounting principles generally actspin the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfiettthe reported amounts of assets and liakslidied disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeamsl the reported amounts of revenue and expensieg dhe reporting period. Actual results
inevitably will differ from those estimates, andchulifferences may be material to the financiaiesteents.

New Accounting Pronouncemen

In November 2002, the Emerging Issues Taskd=(¢'EITF") issued EITF 00-21 “Revenue Arrangensewith Multiple Deliverables.”
EITF 00-21 prescribes a method to account for eatérthat have multiple elements or deliverablgstdvides guidance on how to allocate the
value of a contract to its different deliverablas well as guidance on when to recognize reveroea&d to each deliverable over its
performance period. The provisions of EITF 00-2flgpo revenue arrangements entered into in tlealfigeriods beginning after June 15,
2003. The adoption of EITF No. 00-21 did not haveaterial impact on our financial statements.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150;¢dunting for Certain Financial Instruments witha@icteristics of both Liabilities and
Equity.” SFAS No. 150 requires certain financiatiiments that have both equity and liability ckteestics to be classified as a liability on
the balance sheet. SFAS No. 150 is effective feffitist interim period beginning after June 15, 200he adoption of this statement did not
have a material impact on our financial statements.

In March 2004, the Emerging Issues Task FOERF") issued EITF No. 03-01, “The Meaning ofl@r-Than-Temporary Impairment and
its Application to Certain Investments,” which pides new guidance for assessing impairment logsekebt and equity investments. The new
impairment model applies to investments accoundedrder the cost or equity method and investmaeitsunted for under FAS 115,
“Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and EBg&ecurities.” EITF No. 03-01 also includes netactbsure requirements for cost method
investments and for all investments that are inrnealized loss position. In September 2004, th8B-Alelayed the accounting provisions of
EITF No. 03-01; however the disclosure requiremeeisain effective and the applicable disclosureehseen included in our consolidated
financial statements and related notes theretodd\eot expect the adoption of this EITF to havefiect on our financial statements.

In June 2004, the EITF issued EITF No. 03*A8counting for Investments in Limited Liability @npanies,which provides new guidan
on determining whether non-controlling investmeanta Limited Liability Company (“LLC") should be aounted for under the cost method or
the equity method. EITF No. 03-16 states that aestment in an LLC that maintains a “specific ovahgp account” for each investor should
be viewed as similar to an investment in a limjpgdtnership for determining whether a non-contngllinvestment in an LLC should be
accounted for using the cost or equity method. BYBEF03-16 is effective for the first interim repiog period beginning after June 15, 2004.
The adoption of EITF No. 03-16 did not have andfta our financial statements.
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In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS N4, iBiventory Costs — an amendment of ARB No. 48hjch is the result of its efforts to
converge U.S. accounting standards for inventaviéis International Accounting Standards. SFAS Nal tequires idle facility expenses,
freight, handling costs, and wasted material (sjp@) costs to be recognized as current-period ebatbalso requires that allocation of fixed
production overheads to the costs of conversiopased on the normal capacity of the productiorifes. SFAS No. 151 will be effective for
inventory costs incurred during fiscal years begigrafter June 15, 2005. We do not expect the dolopf this statement to have a material
impact on our financial statements.

In December 2004, FASB issued SFAS No. 12%/iged 2004), “Share-Based Payment”. SFAS No. I&8Resses all forms of share-
based payment (“SBP”) awards, including sharesi$sunder certain employee stock purchase plarsk sfations, restricted stock and stock
appreciation rights. SFAS No. 123R will requiretogxpense SBP awards with compensation cost fér tBhsactions measured at fair value.
SFAS No. 123R requires us to adopt the new acamgiptiovisions beginning in our third quarter of 308Ithough we are in the process of
evaluating the impact of applying the various psais of SFAS No. 123R, we expect that this statémwél have a material impact on our
financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS N8, 1Bxchanges of Non-monetary Assets, an amendofelPB No. 29” which requires
non-monetary exchanges to be recorded at thedhiewof the assets exchanged, with certain exaeptithis standard requires most exchanges
of productive assets to be accounted for at fdireyaather than at carryover basis. The provisafrSFAS No. 153 are effective for fiscal ye
beginning after June 15, 2005. We do not expecatioption of this statement to have a material Thpa our financial statements.

3. Concentrations
Credit Risk and Significant Customel

Financial instruments that potentially subjes to significant concentrations of credit riglnsist of cash equivalents, short- and long-term
investments, accounts receivable and foreign exgghorward contracts. We generally invest our exoash in money market funds,
commercial paper and in debt securities of the bN8giment and its agencies, which each have cdattacaturities of 25 months or less and
an average maturity in aggregate of one year sr B policy, our investments in commercial papertificates of deposit, Eurodollar time
deposits, or banker’s acceptances are rated AAFetier. Our accounts receivable tend to be conatin a limited number of customers. At
December 31, 2004, two customers accounted for @084.6%, respectively of our accounts receivabiesimaggregate accounted for 46%
net accounts receivable. At December 31, 2003 ctvabomers accounted for 18% and 44%, respectifedyoaccounts receivables and in
aggregate accounted for 62% of net accounts rddeiva

Our largest customers tend to change fronogéo period. Historically, a significant portiafi our revenues in any particular period have
been attributable to sales to a limited numbemstamers. In 2004, two customers accounted for 828611%, respectively of our consolide
net revenues and in aggregate accounted for 73%takvenues. In 2003, four customers accounte®5r, 18%, 13% and 10%, respectively,
of our consolidated revenues and in aggregate atedidor 66% of net revenues. In 2002, three custeraccounted for 42%, 21%, and 11%,
respectively, of our consolidated revenues andjgregate accounted for 74% of net revenues. Intpgegorms credit evaluations of its
customers’ financial condition and generally regsideposits on system orders but does not geneegllyre collateral or other security to
support customer receivables.
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Products

Disk manufacturing products contributed angigant portion of our revenues in 2004, 2003 2002. We expect that our ability to maint
or expand our current levels of revenues and tomeb operating profitability in the future wileggend upon our success in enhancing our
existing systems and developing and manufactumdmgpetitive disk manufacturing equipment, such as280 Lean, and our success in
developing both military and commercial productsdzhon our low light and LIVAR technology.

4. Sale of Rapid Thermal Processing Product Lin

In the fourth quarter of 2002, we sold oupRarhermal Processing product line to Photon Dyieaminc. (“PDI”) for $20 million in cash
and the assumption of certain liabilities. $2 roifliof the cash payment was held in escrow and waimduded in total assets on the
consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 20@2p the contingencies related to the releaiegese funds from escrow. In connection
with this sale, we recorded a gain in 2002 of $1Bikion, which is included in other income and erge, net on the Consolidated Statement of
Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss). Thewolg table recaps the gain from the sale anceffext on Intevas balance sheet for t
year ended December 31, 2002 (in thousar

Cash received from PDI (excluding the $2 milliorescrow) $ 18,00(
Less: Accounts receivable transferred to | (594)
Inventory transferred to PIL (1,917
Warranty and retrofit liability transferred to P 162
Other assets and liabilities transferred to (10
Expenses associated with the transac (220

Net gain on sal $ 15,42¢

In the fourth quarter of 2003, we receive8%BR00, net of expenses, from the escrow. This atisuncluded in other income and exper
net on the Consolidated Statement of OperationgCamdprehensive Income (Loss). The remainder ofuithds in escrow were returned to F

5. Equity Investments
601 California Avenue LLC

In 1995, we entered into a Limited Liabil®ompany Operating Agreement (the “Operating Agregiewhich expires December 31,
2015, with 601 California Avenue LLC (the “LLC"),@alifornia limited liability company formed and oed by Intevac and certain
shareholders of Intevac at that time. Under ther&jpey Agreement we transferred our leasehold éstein the site of our discontinued night
vision business (the “Site”) in exchange for a erefd share in the LLC with a face value of $3,000, We are accounting for the investment
under the cost method and have recorded our inesstim the LLC at $2,431,000, which representshistorical carrying value of the
leasehold interest in the Site. The preferred simettee LLC pays a 10% annual cumulative prefedizitiend.

During 1996, the LLC formed a joint venturghwStanford University (the “Stanford JV”). Thea®ford JV developed the property and has
leased the property through August 2009. The LL& psofitable enterprise whose primary asset imfeyest in the Stanford JV. The Compi
received dividends of $390,000 from the LLC in eatkhe last three years. These dividends are detlun other income and expense.
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6. Commitments

We lease certain facilities under non-cartdelaperating leases that expire at various tinpe® UFebruary 2013. The facility leases require
Intevac to pay for all normal maintenance costs:ébruary 2004, we executed a lease amendmentif@anta Clara facility which extended
the lease term to March 2012.

Future minimum rental payments under theasds at December 31, 2004 are as follows (in tmolsda

2005 $ 3,387
2006 3,48¢
2007 2,042
2008 1,60¢
2009 1,682
Beyond 4,251
Total $ 16,45¢

Gross rental expense was approximately $20880 $2,940,000 and $2,873,000 for the years eDeéedmber 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively.

7. Employee Benefit Plan

In 1991, we established a defined contribbutietirement plan with 401(k) plan features. Thenpdovers all United States employees
eighteen years and older. Employees may make batitihs by a percentage reduction in their salariesto exceed the statutorily prescribed
annual limit. We made cash contributions of $280,8234,000 and $276,000 for the years ended Dese®ih 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. Employees may choose among twelvesimvent options for their contributions and thbare of Intevas contributions, and thi
are able to move funds between investment optibasytime. Intevac’s common stock is not one efitivestment options. Administrative
expenses relating to the plan are insignificant.

8. Convertible Notes

During the first quarter of 1997, we comptete offering of $57.5 million of our ¥ 2% Convertible Subordinated Notes (the “2004
Note¢"), with a March 1, 2004 maturity date. Interestsweyable each March 1st and September 1st. The natre convertible into shares of
Intevacs common stock at $20.625 per share. Expensesiassbwith the offering of approximately $2.3 moli were deferred. Such exper
were amortized to interest expense over the tertheofotes.

On July 12, 2002 we completed the exchang86f3 million in aggregate principal amount of @004 Notes for $29.5 million of our new
61/ 2% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2009 (the 9200tes”) and $7.6 million in cash, including $n8@lion for accrued interest. The
2009 Notes were convertible, at the holders’ optioto Intevac common shares at a conversion @& .00 per share. $1.3 million in
aggregate principal amount of the 2004 Notes reathoutstanding after the closing of the exchanégr of

In accounting for the exchange of the conblerinotes, we wrote off $0.4 million of debt issga costs related to the 2004 Notes, reflecting
the portion of such costs attributable to the cotilvie notes exchanged. The remaining debt issueosts were amortized to interest expense
over the remaining life of the 2004 Notes. In cartion with the exchange offer, we incurred $0.8lionil of offering costs. Of this amount,
$0.2 million represented the cash portion of thehexge offer and was expensed during the 3 monttedeSeptember 28, 2002. The
$0.6 million balance of the exchange offering costse amortized to interest expense over the fith@2009 Notes. There was no gain or loss
associated with this transaction, as $36.3 milib2004 Notes were exchanged for $36.3 millionadtcand new securities.
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During 2002, in addition to the note exchadgscribed above, we repurchased $0.3 million, Vatee, of our 2004 Notes. The repurchase
resulted in a gain of $23,000. In accordance witbpéion of SFAS No. 145, the gain on the note relpase is included in other income and
expense, net on the Consolidated Statement of @pesaand Comprehensive Income (Loss).

On October 31, 2003, we issued a notice tfraatic conversion of our 2009 Notes pursuant éir tlerms. $20.1 million in aggregate
principal amount of these notes was outstanding;twtonverted into 2,871,857 shares of Intevac comstock at a conversion price of
$7.00 per share. The automatic conversion occumedovember 10, 2003. Prior to the issuance oftitee of automatic conversion,
$9.4 million in aggregate principal amount of thes¢es had been tendered for conversion by theehgldesulting in the issuance of
1,348,426 shares of Intevac common stock.

On March 1, 2004, we paid off the remainidgO&million of our 2004 Notes.

9. Segment Reporting
Segment Descriptiol

We have two reportable operating segmentsigagent and Imaging. Our Equipment business desigaaufactures, markets and services
complex capital equipment used in the sputteringleposition, of highly engineered thin-films of teal onto magnetic disks which are used
in hard disk drives. Our Imaging business develops manufactures electro-optical sensors, camedhsystems that permit highly sensitive
detection of photons in the visible and near igdaportions of the spectrum, allowing vision inrekrte low light situations.

Included in corporate activities are genemaporate expenses, less an allocation of corpesgienses to operating units equal to 3%, 3%
and 1% of net revenues in 2004, 2003 and 2002¢ectisply. Assets of corporate activities includallmcated cash and shdgrm investment:
deferred income tax assets (which were writteriro#001) and other assets.

Segment Profit or Loss and Segment Ass

We evaluate performance and allocate resedrased on a number of factors including, profibes from operations and future revenue
potential. The accounting policies of the reporadg#gments are the same as those described mntimeasy of significant accounting policies.

Business Segment Net Revent

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)
Equipment $ 60,49( $ 26,74¢ $ 27,10(
Imaging 9,12¢ 9,54¢ 6,684
Total $ 69,61¢ $ 36,29 $ 33,78¢
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Business Segment Profit & Los

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)

Equipment(1] $ @7) $ (3,99 $ (5,139
Imaging(2) (4,119 (4,15%) (3,829
Corporate activitie (75€) (2,507%) (2,32])
Operating los: (5,249 (10,659 (11,289
Interest expens (55 (1,78%) (2,98))
Interest incomt 634 26¢ 284
Other income and expense, 43€ (92 16,16¢
Income (loss) before income tax $ (4239 $ (12,269 $ 2,18:

(1) Includes inventory provisions of $1,263,000, $480,and $847,000 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respeyti
(2) Includes inventory provisions of $112,000, $292,a6@ $469,000 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respecti

Business Segment Asse

2004 2003
(In thousands)

Equipment $ 19,407 $ 25,46:
Imaging 7,13¢ 7,702
Corporate activitie 53,08( 22,81

Total asset $ 79,62 $ 55,97t

Business Segment Property, Plant & Equipme
Additions 2004 2003
(In thousands)

Equipment(1 $ 1,02« $ 1,19¢
Imaging 90C 78¢€
Corporate activitie 402 31C

Total additions $  2,32¢ $ 2,29¢
(1) Includes inventory transferred to fixed assets#ffGin 2004
Depreciation 2004 2003 2002

(In thousands)

Equipment $ 561 $ 45€ $ 1,34¢
Imaging 1,18¢ 1,24(C 86(
Corporate activitie 282 267 371

Total depreciatiol $ 2,031 $ 1,968 $ 2,577

53




Table of Contents

INTEVAC, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Geographic Area Net Trade Revenu

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)
United State: $ 22,54t $ 13,13 $ 16,33:
Far Eas 46,45: 23,15t 17,15(
Europe 61€ — 301
Rest of World — 6 1
Total revenue $ 69,61¢ $ 36,29 $ 33,78

10.  Shareholder¢ Equity

Our Articles of Incorporation authorize 1000000 shares of Preferred Stock. The Board of Birechas the authority to issue the Preferred
Stock in one or more series and to fix the pricghts, preferences, privileges and restrictionsebg including dividend rights, dividend rates,
conversion rights, voting rights, terms of redemiptiredemption prices, liquidation preferences thiedhumber of shares constituting any se
or the designation of such series, without furti@e or action by the shareholders.

Stock Option/ Stock Issuance Plal

Our Board of Directors and our shareholdergra@ved adoption of the 2004 Equity Incentive Rltwe “2004 Plan”) in 2004. The 2004 Plan
serves as the successor equity incentive programrt@995 Stock Option/ Stock Issuance Plan (tf®51Plan”). Upon adoption of the 2004
Plan, all shares available for issuance under @9 Plan were transferred to the 2004 Plan. Thd Z0é@n permits the grant of incentive or
non-statutory stock options, restricted stock, lseqgpreciation rights, performance units and penorce shares. Option price, vesting period,
and other terms are determined by the Administraftéhe 2004 Plan, but the option price shall geliyenot be less than 100% of the fair
market value per share on the date of grant. A3eaember 31, 2004, 2,558,232 shares of common ateciuthorized for future issuance
under the 2004 Plan. Options granted under the P04 are exercisable upon vesting and vest ovérdgseof up to five years. Options
currently expire no later than ten years from tagedf grant. The 2004 Plan expires no later thanckl 10, 2014.

In 2003, our shareholders approved adoptidhen2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “H®BBP”) which serves as the successor to
the Employee Stock Purchase Plan originally adojntd®95. Upon adoption of the 2003 ESPP, all shawailable for issuance under the prior
plan were transferred to the 2003 ESPP. As of Deeer®1, 2004, 276,013 shares of common stock dhe@dzed for future issuance under the
2003 ESPP.
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A summary of our stock option activity antated information for the years ended Decemben8tws:

Outstanding — beginning of

year
Grantec
Exercisec
Forfeited

Outstandin¢— end of yeal

Exercisable at end of ye

Weightec-average per sha
fair value of options grante
during the yea

2004

Weighted-Average

Options Exercise Price
1,426,28 $ 5.2¢€
618,00( 8.3C
(177,37) 4.8¢
(153,959 9.2¢
1,712,95! 6.04
906,35! $ 5.8¢
$ 4.3¢

INTEVAC, INC.
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2003

2002

Weighted-Average

Weighted-Average

Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
1,850,08: $ 5.0z 1,802,02: $ 5.22
259,00( 8.0¢ 429,80( 3.1¢
(530,249 5.64 (13,400 1.4€
(152,549 5.7¢ (368,340 4.0C
1,426,28! 5.2¢€ 1,850,08: 5.0z
840,51¢ $ 5.67 1,188,38: $ 5.81
$ 3.64 $ 1.5¢

Options Outstanding

Outstanding and Exercisable by Price Range as of Bember 31, 2004

Options Exercisable

Number

Number

Qutstanding as of Weighted Average Exercisable as of
December 31, Remaining Weighted Average December 31, Weighted Average
Range of Exercise Prices Contractual Life Exercise Price 2004 Exercise Price
$2.175- $3.200 371,78( 6.87yre $ 2.8C 213,93 $ 2.7¢
$3.375- $5.120 516,25( 797yre $ 4.04 215,87( $ 4.0t
$5.375- $ 8.000 470,17t 457yre  $ 6.4C 344,80( $ 6.3t
$ 8.080- $12.00C 219,00( 9.06yrc $ 9.9z 82,62¢ $ 10.4:
$13.600- $15.50C 123,25( 9.02yre $ 14.3¢ 36,62¢ $ 15.1¢
$21.250- $21.25C 12,50( 137yre  $ 21.2¢ 12,50( $ 21.2¢
$2.175- $21.25C 1,712,95! 6.97yre $ 6.04 906,35 $ 5.8¢
11. Income Taxes
The provision for (benefit from) income taxasincome from continuing operations consistsheffbllowing (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002
Federal:
Current $ — $ (6,589
Deferred — —
— (6,58E)
State:
Current 2 2
Deferred — —
2 2
Foreign:
Current (5 36 (9
Total $ 38 $ (6,599

5
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The tax benefits associated with exerciserofjualified stock options and disqualifying dispions of stock acquired through the
incentive stock option and employee stock purcipdeses reduced taxes currently payable for 20043 20@ 2002 as shown above by $0, $0
and $0, respectively. Such benefits are creditedithtional paid-in capital when realized.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tagaff of temporary differences between losses regpand the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes ane thmounts used for income tax purposes. Significamponents of our deferred tax assets
computed in accordance with SFAS No. 109 are #aWsl(in thousands):

December 31,

2004 2003
Deferred tax asset
Vacation accrual, rent accrual and warranty res $ 95¢ $ 1,041
Depreciatior 1,501 1,431
Inventory valuatior 3,38¢ 3,80z
Deferred incomt 37t 21
Research and other tax credit c-forwards 69¢ 557
Federal and State NOL ca-forwards 12,01( 9,04¢
Other 1,06° 83¢€
19,99: 16,73¢
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass (19,949 (16,689
Total deferred tax asse $ 5C $ 5C
Deferred tax liabilities
Other $ 50 $ 50
Total deferred tax liabilitie $ 50 $ 50
Net deferred tax asse $ — $ —

The valuation allowance increased by $3.3anilduring 2004 due to the uncertainty of realigoertain tax credit and loss carry-forwards,
and other deferred tax assets. The Federal angl is#abperating loss carry-forwards of $30.8 milland $14.0 million expire at various dates
through 2024 and 2014, respectively, if not presiputilized.

A reconciliation of the income tax provision income from continuing operations at the fedstafutory rate of 35% for 2004 and 34% for
2003 and 2002 to the income tax provision at tifecéfe tax rate is as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Income taxes (benefit) computed at the federalittat rate $ (1,479 $ (4,159 $ 76€
State taxes (net of federal bene 75 (439 10¢
Research and other tax crec — (44) (142)
Effect of tax rate changes, permanent differenoesaaljustments of prior deferr: (1,757 73 (181)
Valuation allowanct 3,25¢ 4,60z (7,149
Total $ 11C $ 38 $ (6,599
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12.  Other Accrued Liabilities

December 31,

2004 2003
(In thousands)
Accrued product warrantie $ 90¢ $ 534
Deferred incomu 86& 54
Accrued rent expens 377 1,29(C
Other 792 76E
Total other accrued liabilitie $  2,94: $ 2,64:
13.  Quarterly Consolidated Results of Operations (Unauided)
Three Months Ended
March 27, June 26, Sept. 25, Dec. 31,
2004 2004 2004 2004
(In thousands, except per share date
As restated As restated As restated As restated
Net sales $ 6,43t $ 17,76¢ $ 35,02¢ $ 10,387
Gross profil 1,61¢ 5,68( 6,41( 2,147
Net income (loss (3,360 677 1,371 (3,032
Basic earnings per she $ (0.1¢) $ 0.0¢ $ 0.07 $ (0.15)
Diluted earnings per sha (0.1¢) 0.0z 0.07 (0.15)
Three Months Ended
March 29, June 28, Sept. 27, Dec. 31,
2003 2003 2003 2003
(In thousands, except per share date

Net sales $ 12,01¢ $ 4,58i $ 7,61¢ $ 12,07¢
Gross profil 1,16( 1,11¢ 2,88( 4,671
Net income (loss)(1 (4,00¢) (4,799 (2,899 (607)
Basic earnings per she $ (0.39) $ (0.39 $ (0.249) $ (0.09
Diluted earnings per sha (0.39) (0.39) (0.29) (0.09

(1) Netincome (loss) for the three months ended Deee®b, 2003 includes a gain of $287,000 from the shthe Rapid Therm:
Processing product lin

The amounts shown for net income (loss) diifem the amounts reported in the reports on Fbor@ for the three months ended
March 27, 2004, June 26, 2004 and September 23, 29@$43,000), ($115,000) and $28,000, respegtivitie difference is due to the
restatement discussed in footnote 14. The impabsit and diluted earnings per share reportefi€{) for the three months ended June 26,
2004 and $0.01 for the three months ended Dece&ih&004. There is not an impact on basic or dilet@rnings per share for the three
months ended March 27, 2004 or September 25, 2004.

14. Restatement

During the review of our internal controlse wdentified several Imaging Technology Developnamnitracts where revenue had not been
recognized according to contract terms during 2@8@¢ordingly, we adjusted our interim financial uéts for 2004 to correct the misstateme
We also included in this restatement two timingcnaacies in reported cost of sales and a revisidhe amount of other
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INTEVAC, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)
comprehensive income reported. These inaccuraldae aere not material to our financial statemefite largest change to our reported net

income in any one quarter was $122,000. The changer reported basic and diluted earnings perestias a one cent reduction for the three
months ended June 26, 2004 and a one cent indarabe three months ended December 31, 2004.

The restatement adjustments had the followfifects on our Consolidated Statement of Operationthousands, except for per share
amounts:

Six Nine
Three Months Ended Months Months
Ended Ended
March 27, June 26, Sept. 25, Dec. 31, June 26, Sept. 25,
2004 2004 2004 2004 2004 2004
Net revenue
As reportec $ 6,49¢ $ 17,98( $ 34,87 $ 10,26t $ 24,47¢ $ 59,35(
Restatec 6,43¢ 17,76¢ 35,02¢ 10,38 24,19¢ 59,22¢
Increase (decreas (64) (21€) 15¢ 122 (280) (122
Cost of net revenue
As reportec 4,83¢ 12,18¢ 28,49¢ 8,24( 17,02¢ 45,51¢
Restatec 4,81¢ 12,08 28,61¢ 8,24( 16,90( 45,51¢
Increase (decreas (18) (205) 12z — (123 —
Other income and expense,
As reportec 24¢€ 307 271 254 553 824
Restatec 24¢ 30< 264 254 552 81€
Increase (decreas 3 4 @) — Q) (8)
Net income (loss
As reportec (3,319 79z 1,34: (3,159 (2,525 (1,182
Restatec (3,360 677 1,371 (3,039 (2,689 (1,319
Increase (decreas 43 (115) 28 122 (1598 (230
Net income (loss) per she— basic
As reportec (0.1¢) 0.04 0.07 (0.1¢) (0.19) (0.0¢)
Restatec (0.1¢) 0.0z 0.07 (0.15) (0.19 (0.09)
Increase (decreas — (0.01) — 0.01 (0.01) (0.01)
Net income (loss) per she— diluted
As reportec (0.1¢) 0.0 0.07 (0.1¢) (0.13) (0.06)
Restatec (0.1¢) 0.0: 0.07 (0.15) (0.19) (0.09)
Increase (decreas — (0.0 — 0.01 (0.01) (0.01)
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ltem 9. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants orcAgnting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Iltem 9A.  Controls and Procedure
Management's Report on Assessment of Internal Contl Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishimd maintaining adequate internal control ovearfcial reporting, as such term is defined
under Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) promulgateceutide Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amer@edinternal control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasersurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordanceagitbunting principles generally accepted in théddnStates of America. Because of its
inherent limitations, internal control over finaakieporting may not prevent or detect all misstegpts or fraud. Further, the design of a col
system must reflect the fact that there are resocwastraints, and the benefit of controls mustdiesidered relative to their costs. As a rest
these inherent limitations in all control systems evaluation of controls can provide absolute i@sse that all control issues and instances of
fraud, if any, within the Company have been detkcldese limitations include the realities thatgomknts in decision-making can be faulty,
and that breakdowns can occur because of a simplea mistake. As a result of these limitatiomssstatements due to error or fraud may
occur or not be detected. Accordingly, the Compaijsclosure controls and procedures are designeobvide reasonable, not absolute,
assurance that the disclosure controls and proesdue met. Also, projections of any evaluatioeftéctiveness to future periods are subjet
the risk that controls may become inadequate becdafushanges in conditions, or that the degreeofiance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

In order to evaluate the effectiveness adrimal control over financial reporting, as requibgdSection 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act,
management has conducted an assessment, inclediimgt using the criteria internal Control — Integrated Frameworissued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tread®ommission (COSO). In the course of this evédnatve identified three control
deficiencies that constitute material weaknessesa fesult of these three material weaknessesrigystem of internal controls we concluded
that we did not maintain effective internal congroler our financial reporting during 2004.

A material weakness is a control deficiengiti{iin the meaning of PCAOB Auditing Standard N§.@& combination of control
deficiencies, that results in there being more thaamote likelihood that a material misstateménih® annual or interim financial statements
will not be prevented or detected. As of Decemligr2B04, we concluded that we did not maintainatiife controls over (1) aspects of the
Imaging Business, (2) approval of inventory cyaemt adjustments, and (3) documentation relatexditauarterly review and approval of
excess and obsolete inventory reserves. Our ev@aiuatas follows:

Imaging BusinessWe determined during the course of our year-amitahat projected, rather than approved, biliates were used
to calculate revenue for cost-plus-fixed-fee tedbgyp development contracts. In addition, journaties for revenue recognition and the
related documentation were not subjected to adeqeatew and approve

We also determined during the course ofyaar-end audit that firm fixed-price technologywelepment contracts were not being
accounted for in accordance with U.S. GAAP for fiired-price contracts. This would have resultedimoverstatement of revenue and
operating profit had it not been discovered priottte public release of our 2004 earnings. Durivegfirst quarter of 2005, we retrained our
accounting staff in proper application of reveneeognition policies and implemented policies regay@nalyzing contracts for proper
revenue recognition accountir

We determined during the course of our -end audit that a receivable greater than one yiddraal not been reserved as a bad ¢
During the fourth quarter of 2004, we implementdzhd debt policy that required receivables agecertttan one year to be fully reserved.
Our review did not include unbilled receivables aveldid not establish the appropriate bad debtvesé&his would have resulte
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in an understatement of bad debt expense andeastatement of operating profit had it not beestovered prior to the public release of
our earnings. We have changed our process for @uadpiaccounts receivable to ensure that all bakaace reviewed for collectibility on a
regular basis

Approval of Inventory Cycle Count Adjustmentd¥e-routinely cycle count our stockroom inventoid®sl make corrections to our
inventory balances as a result of those cycle @oWie determined late in 2004 that the cycle cadpistments were being made, but
without written approval by management as requingdur internal control policies. Management auttation of cycle count adjustments
is necessary to reduce the potential of an emploge®y a cycle count adjustment to conceal a thféfiventory. The requirement for the
appropriate management approval of all cycle cadpistments was -emphasized in December of 20!

Documentation of Excess and Obsolete InventoryrResgalculation Review and Approv— We determine, on a quarterly basis,
level of reserves required related to excess andlete inventory. Excess and obsolete inventorgrves are an estimate which requires
significant judgment on the part of management. Chief Financial Officer reviews and approves thesttmates on a quarterly basis.
Given the significant nature of the estimate, wiedeined during the course of our internal contedaluations that improved
documentation of those reviews was needed. Weadadument the quarterly management reviews of exaes®bsolete calculations
beginning with the reviews performed in the firgagter of 2005

Management’s assessment of the effectiverfab® internal control over financial reportingasDecember 31, 2004 has been audited by
Grant Thornton LLP, the Company’s independent tegésl public accounting firm, as stated in thefrore which is included at page 61 herein.

/sl Kevin Fairbairr /sl Charles B. Eddy I

Changes in Internal Controls

During 2004, we made numerous changes tintermal controls and procedures as part of oupomngevaluation, monitoring and
development of our internal controls. However, with exception of the changes noted in our ManagémBeport on Assessment of Internal
Control over Financial Reporting, none of the chemim the Company'’s internal control over financggorting identified in connection with
the evaluation of such internal control during @@mpany’s last fiscal quarter materially affectedare reasonably likely to materially affect,
the Company'’s internal control over financial refpa.

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

Our management evaluated, with the partimpatf our Chief Executive Officer and our Chiehkncial Officer, the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures, as such tedefised under Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated undeStwuirities Exchange Act of 1934 as
amended. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Exex@fficer and our Chief Financial Officer havenctuded that our disclosure controls and
procedures were not effective as of December 314 28 a result of the three material weaknessetifidd above.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Intevac, Inc.

We have audited management’s assessmentdéettin the accompanying Intevac, Inc. Managemétgjsort on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting, that Intevac, Inc. did not main effective internal control over financial ceping as of December 31, 2004, because of
the effect of the material weaknesses identifiech@dmagement’s assessment, based on criteria shediin Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imgtions of the Treadway Commission (COSO). late¥nc.’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal gohbver financial reporting and for its assessnwdrihe effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting. Our responsibility is to expsean opinion on management's assessment andranropn the effectiveness of the
Company'’s internal control over financial reportiogsed on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withstaedards of the Public Company Accounting Ovétdipard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amidbtain reasonable assurance about whethetigfenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe©tsr audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing ahdhating the design and operating effectivenessitgfrnal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary @irtlenstances. We believe that our audit providesagonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financiaporting is a process designed to provide reaseregsurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantteagicounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. A company'’s ingrrontrol over financial reporting includes thgssicies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonablél detaurately and fairly reflect the transacti@msl dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transadiensecorded as necessary to permit preparatifinasfcial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in theté¢hStates of America, and that receipts and experd of the company are being made
in accordance with authorizations of managementdinedtors of the company; and (3) provide reastmabsurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usredisposition of the company’s assets that coalkra material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intercahtrol over financial reporting may not preventietect misstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgexct to the risk that controls may become inadézjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdates may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a control deficierarycombination of control deficiencies, that resuit a more than remote likelihood that a
material misstatement of the annual or interimritial statements will not be prevented or detectéeé. following material weaknesses have
been identified and included in management’s ass@sis

* The lack of appropriate internal controls over linaging Business

» The approval of inventory cycle count adjustmeats]

» The documentation related to the comf’'s quarterly review and approval of excess and ebsdahventory reserve

These material weaknesses were considemetémmining the nature, timing, and extent of atehts applied in our audit of the 2004
consolidated financial statements, and this regoes not affect our report dated March 22, 2003hose consolidated financial statements.
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In our opinion, management’s assessmentitit@tac, Inc. did not maintain effective internahtrol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all mategapects, based on criteria established in late@ontrol — Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of theativay Commission. Also in our opinion, becausthefeffect of the material weaknesses
described above on the achievement of the objextif¢he control criteria, Intevac, Inc. has noimtegined effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, basedriteria established in Internal Control — Intigd Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Comimiss

We have also audited, in accordance withstaadards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdiglard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Intevac, Inc. &eoeémber 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related cdasedl statements of operations and
comprehensive income (loss), shareholders’ eqaitgl,cash flows for each of the three years in greog ended December 31, 2004 and our
report dated March 22, 2005 expressed an unguhbfénion on those financial statements.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLF

San Jose, California
March 22, 2005
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Item 9B.  Other Information

As discussed in footnote 14, our quarterfgrimation for 2004 has been restated.

PART IlI

Item 10.  Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrz

The information required by this item relgtiio the Company directors and nominees, disclosure relating topdmnce with Section 16(
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and infdiomaregarding our code of ethics is included urtlercaptions “Election of Directors,”
“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Coiapte, “and “Code of Ethics” in the Company’s Pr@&tatement for the 2005 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders and is incorporated hdsgireference. The information required by this iteiating to the Company’s executive
officers and key employees is included under thetica “Executive Officers and Directors” under Itehin Part | of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

ltem 11.  Executive Compensatio
The information required by this item is idéd under the caption “Executive CompensationReldted Information” in the Company’s
Proxy Statement for the 2005 Annual Meeting of 8halders and is incorporated herein by reference.

ltem 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ailinagement and Related Stockholder Matt:

Securities authorized for issuance under equitypemsation plansThe following table summarizes the number of ouigiiag options
granted to employees and directors, as well asuh@ber of securities remaining available for futigsiance, under our equity compensation
plans at December 31, 2004.

@) (b) ©

Number of Securities Number of Securities
to be Issued upon Weighted-Average Remaining Available
Exercise of Exercise Price of for Future Issuance
Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, Under Equity
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Compensation Plans(1
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders(2 1,712,95! $ 6.04 1,121,291
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holder: — $ — —
Total 1,712,95! $ 6.04 1,121,29i

(1) Excludes securities reflected in column
(2) Included in the column (c) amount are 276,013 shawailable for future issuance under Int¢ s 2003 Employee Stock Purchase P

The other information required by this itesriricluded under the caption “Ownership of Seasitin the Company’s Proxy Statement for
the 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders and isrp@@ted herein by reference.
Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactio

The information required by this item is idéd under the caption “Certain Transactions” e@ompany’s Proxy Statement for the 2005
Annual Meeting of Shareholders and is incorpordtein by reference.
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Iltem 14.

The information required by this item is indéd under the caption “Fees Paid To Accountant$SEovices Rendered During 2004” in the

Principal Accountant Fees and Servict

Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2005 Annual Megetif Shareholders and is incorporated herein tereace.

Item 15.

PART IV

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul

(a) List of Documents filed as part of thisrual Report on Form 10-K.

1. The following consolidated financial statnts of Intevac, Inc. are filed in Part I, ItenoBthis Report on Form 10-K:
Report of Grant Thornton LLP, Independent Registétablic Accounting Firn
Consolidated Balance She— December 31, 2004 and 20
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compselemcome (Loss) for the years ended Decembe2@®14, 2003 and 20(
Consolidated Statement of Sharehol’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2004, 20013200Z
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeradled December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem«— Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and :

2. Financial Statement Schedules.

The following financial statement scheduldraévac, Inc. is filed in Part IV, Iltem 14(a) &fi$ Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Schedule I— Valuation and Qualifying Accoun

All other schedules have been omitted siheer¢quired information is not present in amounffiGgent to require submission of the
schedule or because the information required isidteal in the consolidated financial statementsates thereto.

3. Exhibits
Exhibit
Number Description
x2 1 Asset Purchase Agreement between Intevac, IncPantbn Dynamics, Inc. dated as of October 22, :
*3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of IncorporatiorhefRegistran
*3.2 Bylaws of the Registrar
feaiaiala” T Registration Rights Agreement, dated January 164 2Between the Company, Redemco, LLC and Fostgi
LLC
*10.1+ The Registrars 1991 Stock Option/Stock Issuance F
*10.2+ The Registrars 1995 Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan, as ame
*10.3+ The Registrar's Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as ame
*reekk10 4+ The Registrar's 2004 Equity Incentive Ple
**10.5 Lease, dated February 5, 2001 regarding the spaaéeHd at 3560, 3570 and 3580 Bassett Street, Stanta,
California
10.6 First Amendment to Lease, dated February 23, 2664rding the space at 3560, 3570 and 3580 Bagsett,
Santa Clara, Californi
*10.7 601 California Avenue LLC Limited Liability Operaty Agreement, dated July 28, 1¢
*10.8+ The Registrar's 401(k) Profit Sharing Ple
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Exhibit
Number Description
**xx]10 .9+ The Registrar's 2005 Executive Incentive PI.
211 Subsidiaries of the Registre
231 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriim
241 Power of Attorney (see page €
311 Certification of President and Chief Executive ©fi Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 200z
31.2 Certification of VicePresident, Finance and Administration, Chief Finaln©fficer, Treasurer and Secrett
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 200z

321 Certifications Pursuant to U.S.C. 1350, adoptedg®amt to Section 906 of the Sarbe-Oxley Act of 200z

*
**%
*k%
*kkk
*kkkk

*kkkkk

+

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrattatement on Form-1 (No. 3:-97806)

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2!
Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Report on Form-K filed November 14, 200

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Report on Form-K filed February 7, 200

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2!
Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Comp’s Proxy Statement filed on March 31, 2(

Management compensatory plan or arrangement rebjdree filed as an exhibit pursuant to Item 1%fdrorm 1(-K
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lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 1B5¢d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, rémistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduolp authorized, on March 31, 2005.

INTEVAC, INC.

By:

/s/ CHARLES B. EDDY llI

Charles B. Eddy, Il

Vice President, Finance and Administrati
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secre
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that epelson whose signature appears below constitateagpoints Kevin Fairbairn
and Charles B. Eddy lll, and each of them, asrhis &nd lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with gower of substitution and resubstitution,
for him and in his name, place and stead, in ayadincapacities, to sign any and all amendmentdyding post-effective amendments) to this
Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, witheathibits thereto, and other documents in connedtierewith, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneyfat and agents, and each of them, full poweraantority to do and perform each and
every act and thing requisite and necessary twhe th connection therewith, as fully to all inteand purposes as he might or could do in
person, hereby ratifying and confirming all thatlsatorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of thentheir or his substitute or substitutes, may

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secarifichange Act of 1934, this report has been sigpedalv by the following persons on behal
the registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Signature

Title

Date

/s/ KEVIN FAIRBAIRN

President, Chief Executive Officer and DirectoritiBipal

(Kevin Fairbairn)

/sINORMAN H. POND

(Norman H. Pond

/s/ CHARLES B. EDDY llI

Vice President, Finance and Administration, Chief

(Charles B. Eddy III)

/s/ DAVID DURY

(David Dury)

/s/STANLEY J. HILL

(Stanley J. Hill)
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Executive Officer)

Chairman of the Boar

Financial Officer Treasurer and Secretary (Principa

Financial and Accounting Office

Director

Director

March 31, 200¢

March 31, 200¢

March 31, 2005

March 31, 200t

March 31, 200¢
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Signature Title Date
/s/ DAVID N. LAMBETH Director March 31, 2005
(David N. Lambeth
/s/ ROBERT LEMOS Director March 31, 2005
(Robert Lemos
/sIARTHUR L. MONEY Director March 31, 200t

(Arthur L. Money)
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SCHEDULE Il — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Additions (Reductions)

INTEVAC, INC.
Charged
Balance at (Credited) to
Beginning Costs and
Description of Period Expenses
Year ended December 31, 20!
Deducted from asset accour
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 22E $ 73
Inventory provision: 12,66: 1,31¢
Year ended December 31, 20!
Deducted from asset accour
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 26¢ $ (149
Inventory provision: 9,55¢ 743
Year ended December 31, 20!
Deducted from asset accour
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 22 $ 21¢€
Inventory provision: 10,19: 1,37¢

(1) Write-offs of amounts deemed uncollectik

(2) Write-off of inventory having no future use or value he Compan

68

Charged
(Credited) Balance at
to Other Deductions- End of
Accounts Describe Period
(In thousands)
$ — 3 29(1) $ 26¢
(229) 4,1842) 9,55¢
$ 6 $ 11C(1) $ 22
58¢ 69¢(2) 10,19:
$ (23 $ — $ 217
(121) 1,58%(2) 9,86:
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Number Description
x2 1 Asset Purchase Agreement between Intevac, IncPantbn Dynamics, Inc. dated as of October 22, :
*3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of IncorporatiorhefRegistran
*3.2 Bylaws of the Registrar
feciaiala” B Registration Rights Agreement, dated January 164 28etween the Company, Redemco, LLC and Fostgr Ci
LLC
*10.1+ The Registrars 1991 Stock Option/Stock Issuance F
*10.2+ The Registrars 1995 Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan, as ame
*10.3+ The Registrar's Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as ame
*rxeekk10 4+ The Registrar's 2004 Equity Incentive Ple
**10.5 Lease, dated February 5, 2001 regarding the spaaéHd at 3560, 3570 and 3580 Bassett Street, Stanta,
California
10.6 First Amendment to Lease, dated February 23, 2804rding the space at 3560, 3570 and 3580 Bagsedt,S
Santa Clara, Californi
*10.7 601 California Avenue LLC Limited Liability Operaty Agreement, dated July 28, 1€
*10.8+ The Registrar's 401(k) Profit Sharing Ple
*rx10 .9+ The Registrar's 2005 Executive Incentive Pl
211 Subsidiaries of the Registre
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking
24.1 Power of Attorney (see page €
311 Certification of President and Chief Executive ©dfi Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 200:
312 Certification of Vice-President, Finance and Administration, Chief FinanOfficer, Treasurer and Secret:
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 200z
321

Certifications Pursuant to U.S.C. 1350, adoptedamt to Section 906 of the Sarbe-Oxley Act of 200z

* Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrattatement on Form-1 (No. 3:-97806)

**

*k%

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2I
Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Report on Form-K filed November 14, 200

rkkk Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Report on Form-K filed February 7, 200

*kkkk

*kkkkk

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2!
Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Comp’s Proxy Statement filed on March 31, 2(

+  Management compensatory plan or arrangement refjigree filed as an exhibit pursuant to Item 18fdform 1(-K
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Exhibit 10.¢

FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE

This First Amendment to Lease (“Amendment”), is maaid entered into this 2BJay of February, 2004 by and between Mission West
Properties, L.P. lll, a Delaware limited partnepstfiMission” or “Lessor”) and Intevac CorporatiomCalifornia corporation (“Lessee”).

RECITALS

A. Lessee currently leases from Lessor approxindtl9,583 square feet of space located at 3580-B&assett Street, Santa Clara,
California (the" Premise”) pursuant to that certain lease dated February@], gbe“Leas(”).

B. The term of the Lease expires on March 31, 2

C. Lessee has elected and Mission has agreed to etkiererm of Lease until March 31, 2012 subje¢h®terms and conditions set fo
herein:

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideratiba receipt and sufficiency of which are acknalgled, the parties hereto agret
amend the Lease as follows:

1. TERM: The term of the Lease is hereby extendediver(5) years until March 31, 201:

2.  BASIC RENT:The base rent shall be adjusted to and payabléléd7das follows

Base ren Estimated CA( Total

4/1/07 through 3/31/0 $113,60: $ 2,20C  $115,80:

*CAC subject to annual adjustment.

Monthly base rent to increase each year by thelexs (i) $.05 per square foot per month or (i increase in the Bay Area Consumer
Price Index, during the prior year on April 1 othayear during this extended term over the pri@rigerent rounded to the nearest dollar.
(Example if consumer price increased by 7% from0#1o 3/31/08 then the amount of increase woultebsger of $.05 +.95 = $1.00 or

$.95 x 107% = $1.0165 times 119,583.)

3. _COMMON AREA CHARGESL essee shall continue to pay to Mission its shammmon area charges as provided for in the
Lease during the extended tel

4. BROKERAGE COMMISSIONEach party represents and warrants to the othéy heat it has not utilized or contacted a reaate
broker or finder with respect to this Amendment aadh party agrees to indemnify and hold each dthenless against any claim,
cost, liability or cause of action asserted by broker or finder claiming through either party. Bl@n and Lessee agree that Mis:
shall not be obligated to pay any broker leasingmoissions, consulting fees, finders fees or angrofdsees or commissions arising
out of the negotiation and execution of this Amerdtror relating to any extended term of the Leagde any expansion or

relocation of the Premise




5. LESSEE CERTIFICATIONAS a condition of Less’s agreeing to this Amendment, Les

hereby certifies and confirms that as of the dathie Amendment, Lessee is not in violation of gowernment regulation

ordinances, rules or laws, including those pentgino Hazardous Waste and/or Hazardous Materialssée is accepting Premises
in an“as i< condition.

6. _RATIFICATION OF LEASEExcept as modified herein, the Lease is herebfiadtiapproved and confirmed upon all the terms,
covenants, and conditior

7. _AUTHORITY:Each party executing this Amendment representsnamcants that he or she is duly authorized to eteeand delive
this Amendment. If executed on behalf of a corporatthat this Amendment is executed in accordavite the by-laws of said
corporation (or a partnership that this Amendmembiecuted in accordance with the partnership aggeeof such partnership), tl
no other party’s approval or consent to such execwtnd delivery is required, and that this Amendtig binding upon said
individual, corporation (or partnership) as theecagy be in accordance with its tert

MISSION WEST PROPERTIES, L.P. llI, INTEVAC CORPORATION,

a Delaware limited partnersh a Delaware corporatic

By: /s/ Carl E. Ber By: /s/ Charles B. Eddy Il
Carl E. Berg Charles B. Eddy Il

Title: CEO of the General Partn Title: CFO

Date: 2/24/0¢ Date: 2/23/0¢






Exhibit 21.1
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

. Lotus Technologies, In— California

. Intevac Foreign Sales Corporati— Barbados
. Intevac Asia Private Limite— Singapore

. Intevac Malaysia Sdn BF— Malaysia

. IRPC, Inc.— California






Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have issued our reports dated March 225 28@:ompanying the consolidated financial statesn@md management’s assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financigboeting included in the Annual Report of Intevaws.lon Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2004. We hereby consent to the incatipa by reference of said reports in the RedistnaStatements (Form S-8 Nos. 33-
99648, 333-35801, 333-65421, 333-96529, 333-50388,106960 and 333-109260) pertaining to the 1986kOption/Stock Issuance Plan,
the Employee Stock Purchase Plan and the 2003 epldtock Purchase Plan and in the Registratider8tats (Form S-3 No. 333-24275,
No. 33:-111342 and No. 333-112497).

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

San Jose, California
March 22, 2005






Exhibit 31.1

Certifications

I, Kevin Fairbairn certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Intevac, Inc.

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtajnuntrue statement of a material fact or ométéde a material fact necessary to
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeer which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the period covered
by this report

. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respe
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this repa

. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andre responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportireg @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal controls over finanoéglorting, or caused such internal control oveatiitial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial stateme
in accordance with generally accepted accountimgiples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragtisslosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguaures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation;
and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesignt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repog) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regastr’'s internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antldve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitae@mmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cémtreer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signiffole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 31, 2005

/s/ KEVIN FAIRBAIRN
Kevin Fairbairn
President, Chief Executive Officer and Direct







Exhibit 31.2

Certifications

I, Charles B. Eddy certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Intevac, Inc.

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comaynuntrue statement of a material fact or om#téde a material fact necessary to ir
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeer which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the period covered
by this report

. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsofimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respe
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, theopks presented in this repa

. The registrar's other certifying officer(s) and | are responsildleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%3(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedortee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal controls over financéglorting, or caused such internal control oveariitial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting attie preparation of financial stateme
in accordance with generally accepted accountimgiples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragtisslosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such evaluation;
and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt's internal control over financial reportitigt occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repog) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regisit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimternal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfws persons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal ctmtreer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 31, 2005

/sl CHARLES B. EDDY lil

Charles B. Eddy Il
Vice President, Finance and Administrati
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secret







Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF  FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Kevin Fairbairn, certify, pursuant to 183JC. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to SediiéroBthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that
the Annual Report of Intevac, Inc. on Form 10-K tloe period ended December 31, 2004 fully compligis the requirements of Section 13(a)
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 thvad information contained in such Form 10-K fapkesents in all material respects the
financial condition and results of operations dkirac, Inc.

By: /s/ KEVIN FAIRBAIRN
Name: Kevin Fairbairn
Title:  President, Chief Executive Officer and Direc

I, Charles B. Eddy llI, certify, pursuant t8 .S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant tod®e@€6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that the Annual Report of Intevac, Inc. on FormKL@r the period ended December 31, 2004 fully cespwith the requirements of Section
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act @4Land that information contained in such Form 1faiky presents in all material respects
the financial condition and results of operatiohintevac, Inc.

By: /s/ CHARLES B. EDDY Il

Name: Charles B. Eddy Il

Title:  Vice President, Finance and Administrati
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and
Secretary

A signed original of this written statemenqué&ed by Section 906 has been provided to Intelvec,and will be retained by Intevac, Inc. :
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commissiats staff upon request.



